EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023 31
UFJ S.A.
Mitsubishi UFJ Investor Services & Banking (Luxembourg) S.A.

Fabrice Mas

1150
287 289

287-289, route d"Arlon, L-1150 Luxembourg, Grand Duchy of
Luxembourg

03 6212 8316

MUGC GS Cayman Fund -
GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund

30 3,914
30 2,758
3,000

30 3,914

1/296



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023
31
130.47
91.93

2/296



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

MUGC GS Cayman Fund - GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund

MUGC GS Cayman Fund - GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund

UFJ S_A. Mitsubishi UFJ
Investor Services & Banking (Luxembourg) S.A.

30 3,914
30 2,758
3,000

30 3,914

4.4 4.0

3/296



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023
2024 29

Www.gsam.co. jp

03-6437-6000

(12) )

Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.

®

4/296



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

5/296



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

MUGC GS Cayman Fund - GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
2010 10

MUGC GS Cayman Fund

2023 USD Class AUD
Class JPY Class Hedged
USD Class (Hedged)

23 25

6/296



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2027 30

1974 11

2010 10

2012 10

2012

2012 26

2015 27

2016 10

2018 19

2018 28

2021 10 2027 30

2022 30

71296



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

[
MUGE G344 <o - e B

7 B B
G2 F-APIUT-
v ) FEESE T o F

sEEit it
IR e B | R et 1| A TEIEE i L i B 5 B P AR Y RSP
oA Leri At 1 ERITE L. PR - M-

riwwr)iza ¥
(77 FEEOEEER.
77 FEEBEOERT - BRLUERD (77 FOEHEERE

RE - ERBHAIE

Iz
ﬁ
i
i R B = #
x TIRBRE T e
i ‘f'ji AEERTR TS
ﬁ;ﬁ § FEL s FEFE~T L N
HAk B B ERSR : Ty Berin-
- 3 (T FEEDRE,
(HFCBTE 27 FIFSO IR ERBREITHRE
= . ggbm‘?gaﬁg} 4 Bl R ESRBRETER
i
%E
31 SR 2
BlsImsit #
FTfPrr - FudRH Ty
MUEGIL- & A< 3254 e b AP —F i a A
B o -5,
(IFESEREERL U ) (B 2R
— [ EERI E05
S EEERAESY
prrer—— B4R EERAEN
BT 21 BEaE AL
e G =Faal) F—feFr o fud AT}
TAYA Y AR L RS P S
(TR eaEEs L _JERyf
g ) {BIiREIER 2R

8/296



EDINETOOOO

o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

REE

BB e ERITEOEREL
DT

RAZIEIe L S

78 R

TAB e e K
[dl Bl e ol
Fr A AT T i
gFNs P E e B
TNl —F—2 kT
ToLZN R A
s SN Rl S |

e ik

ZFILETD
A ) w FEESRE Lv#
TR

9/296



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

UFJ 2010 10 2012
10 2015 27 2016
S.A. 10

Mitsubishi UFJ
Investor Services &
Banking (Luxembourg)
S.A.

2010 10 2012
10 2015 27 2016
10

Brown Brothers
Harriman Trust Company
(Cayman) Limited

MUFG 2014 31
S.A.

MUFG Lux Management

Company S.A. 2020 10

2008 11

(Brown Brothers Harriman
& Co.)

2017 10
2017 14

Goldman Sachs Asset
Management
International

2017 10 2017
14
Yarra Funds Management
Limited

10/296



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2006 10 10

2012 10
2016

11/296



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1915 10
1974 11 1915 10
2023
187,117,965.90 244
5,051,655 37.04
1974 11
2006
2007
2016
UFJ S.A.

2023

5,051,655 100.00

12/296



30

1925

150

13/296

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

50

2027

21



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

PricewaterhouseCoopers

30

30

26 198

14/296



1

(b

15/296

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

77 ROREE

1. ¥29— 77 B> ZICHERILRTONT TV Y RIS LU 7R THESh A DS hiz
A—=hTAUACIRBIT S LEHTLET .

o B RIS [T T RS SRR ET .
2. AOOEEISAHSERUVERETET,

RELBTRECHT 28 AP BRRAELTITVE

HELZSZ KENRT Y

FELT SR ERLET BEATRBIELTITVERA.

ERLBRTHECHLTRIELTHATO BB A Y

IS (BB =
Ho=2 (ae 4 2l g FTLET.

FRlEBTEECHLTERELTHERLTOLRE

HELZSZ (BEAYTSHI) HEILRT AT OET,

3. 8B108 (77 FEEETEVESRB 77 RER0) (CRENSBATIEN TEET,

s 7ro SRl O e, Za—3—9. Y= AlFl B EUER S LW TIRIT AL T EB T . O K
EESENE R, = 2 —3— TSGR S LT — 2 LS U PIEE IS R AR LT LS. SRS B LTS
HEEESHSEELLET.

il BN RER G T O ROBRTC LT ARG T TR T IR LS Y EUET.,
AL S £ o, St BRI H S S, BoL SR H b O ESY BUET.

307105

BNY

1994 31

16/296



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1995
0806.743.159
CFD
777 ROEEA
*I70F FAF=T7k
[ T BN TS
1-{‘33’-5'5""’ MUGE G54 32~ T7 -k ] 0
b | | GSF=ARSVT NIV FRET TR | L o N e T N
; > wHLIFAREED | Tt || mELETO
EE | . WL SAREEN | | e =T o | SATURES
e e *".‘J;’*;ﬁgi,';‘,l;“"‘ BEULSTR G
e it XSS Sy R _—
A SRS
B

1 BT TR T RSB LT,
%2 EFERMCESTIR. RELS S 2R EES. BRI 7T 2R BT 52 (L Ao B RS ERE UG S (A B B RESOET IR
T 2 e F TR SO LM SR FEERLS R I L,

17/296



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

10

18/296



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2]z 0B 118 128

AADDDD DD DD D D

LR A= VETH RO ESOFVELTZTOEMIOVWTRIITIEOTRBVER A.

19/296



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

SEEICHETIEEER

SyEE(d. AT OFIB SR o) T ERONEE N SILONETOT. SEE A S bns & £ 0EEl
1S5, Bl OS-UMEEHSE T ET .

BHRER TR IO NS 1A

SEeE(. FRE YD CRELDBR(REYREESSELSHBS LURSFNES LUTBRESCR
i) # BTV NSBEaABUEY . TORE. SASER (SEEES) D108 UHIEE SR 5
EREEATTFET LI ET .

T AESOARR. ATLLSRBMICE 277 EDRBRERTLOTREVEL A,

GRS, 2B ORE Y S R0 SREECOHNEELET.

ﬂEﬂjﬁMﬂ:ﬁibtﬂEﬂ) SRR CRELCESEBA THRLONSIBS
hhSEHONSES
“FASEBNBEHS IDHE RS LRl aRa “KRFRBNREHS U RS L SRS
10 A0MKE-
§ VO S5EEL

o % 6oy e vile Lo T
10.S0M L '«":-‘. }j 10 SO 1 TOSOMER .7 Lo OSEE) . o 10.50ME

Y P anaw - F e SR bR VoMK freeas s EamraiEEssEsasssEamEsananEee

10458 h
L ek 5

[ by, i

- - Sl 10N A

4 - = e 1:3-I:-Ir:.lp

2 3
B AeE SASES KR SED Lilehe 2=ai SR HASEg HARERD BRSPS RS
mE AEmEE SERE == Erl - f1] iR =E AR SRR
A S AR o i a s mTL (FOEMME o RS BB
mmw:wﬁmwmenn . BELOSEEE LA L SEOCERELERLML
m
mtm I

& FRfidr AL rE ) iR 1 O U S R TS0 iR R A T IR S

# FRAIDERCE L POSRTL TV ETH L7322, F772 (B s YEY  BETEEL72 2 (BB B IR SRS T .
SRR RO R L EREIR R T R N SRS EUE T O S RS DR B IS 2 i RO B A S A R Ol e
R, B RO LSS O R L £ R T B O A RS T R SRS S L,

WHEOT7 EDBRMTS ORI\ BIBCL-TR LUTOES) . SRS —BEL1 284, 2HMICiE T
D—BHRUICIHYTAESHEUET.COBS. Y0 —SILhREUCHYE T8t o8 sLToR
HRORSEAVET. 77 FRBARO 1 DN EMEOME L ATUA. SN SRS LIS o
BELEANCTEED—SHhREUIMBYT S/ BUET,

HEEO—BHTEO—SLRUCHELT SRS SEEOEESTEO—BHLREUICELET B

"""""" HMASIEEEES [ R
R -4 j-]'xl:’j'_}FE ﬁéﬁ;} S
ICHX. FH & ; HMAEBETES
B (e d e ol ERa HiiHEeE) e
PR AR EELTEENE WS SR N HESELTERR
10y Lbied. 1Ol FHBLEUET.

BAREE RS

G

20/296



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

HEMCOOTHREMBS TELCRS

U ALRSEPDICAERT SRS «EMOUF— B lNsESAZ) 0% SEE

@ ZOETR. EEOUVS - E—ELRELTLETH . RO TR RISV AR TR T LS B SRENNRERLET
OTCHESEEL,
i R 1 O=108 N

AT
s |
e T Qmﬁ-'

0.5BER o
oShrn P L
208k, 20REL
_ st
qomey. | HAS (ARH o
BABEL w 03WEL RN
ik LT .ﬁ.f:' \ CEE IO 1
FEEYE > wEn g 'mf \
- 2 o b 2
| POmENL O oweE 7081
e
() STEEH GIFE JiHH s B ia ] 108EH

GIEEGS
1HEBE DN
EH LRSI A FYEINRSEF R ERTIIBE s EMOVT — BB 0 REAZ) H0%SEE
% COETI ROV - B EEREL TV E T, RO RRA SR T BEBHc sUAR < FETACn Sy, 2 AR EF LT

DTCHMECTSED.
R 1 0= 108 EN
$5aie
| i Y
ez, 1B 2
s 5
Y 0. 5E L
o LABEL
0.9 e
r 1 &-EF.IJ
oomsn > YR 0.4BER : |
DamEN 1 28R *ﬁ’.I
72BN - HAR | - |
S e N amEw e iedis]
A oSEFL
SEmKN, R QEmEN.
| | e | ; D2mEN
(4 ENEEA OSBEL OTBEL |
e R }ﬁ"-ﬂ E [
AR aeRd |
s a0meal Shem 20l
J ] S i
(P SIFELE SEEE piiic] SiPE LHE] 1065

BIFHTS
104 EETORE

(EE) LB A= 2 it R A F MR P r R T S0 O TRBUVE R A TORRCIIE.
BT LR ST T AR RS L O AR T A TE S LR SRS SR B SO NRAS O T TR o o L R S

TET ML DO ETR RIS T 2 AR D E Sokho 10t . TOHMERE YT TEL TV T, — K. : S
(EE A R ARSI TF T LT SRRSO DR TS O SSICHREER Y FELTVET. D | 249 L ITw s
DRSS U EE TR SN ORI A P AR R A 2 0BRSS L S Y 4 O L) (D U ) s
EHEL., MR 3 ORI LT, HES
FEI BN T, St L R Mot L B A S S S R B A T OW L (08 L+ 4 08 L P
T,

21/296



10

50

20

22/296

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

50

15 15

17



50

15

23/296

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

10

10
10

50

15

10

17



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

24/296



Q@

25/296

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

26/296



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

27/296



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

28/296



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

29/296



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

30/296



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1970

4.13(a) (4)

1956

31/296



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

32/296



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

100

2014 2015
10 16

90

2008

33/296



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

34/296



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

35/296



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

36/296



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

37/296



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

38/296



25

42

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

1974

1986
4975

25 42

4975

39/296



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

@
Q)
©

40/296



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

41/296



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

100

42/296



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

43/296



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

44/296



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

45/296



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

46/296



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

www .adviserinfo.sec.gov

47/296



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

48/296



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

49/296



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

50/296



(

(
)

)

51/296

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

)



(

)

(x

(

)

(

)

52/296

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

()

x )

)
)



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

53/296



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

54/296



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

55/296



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

56/296



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

57/296



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

)
)

58/296



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

12b

59/296



(

)

@

(b)

©
(D)

60/296

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

61/296



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

62/296



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

63/296



Q@

64/296

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2011 2011/61/

65/296



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(€
TERIBEEDEATH. BREOBRTRETS8OTIEHNEE A
7 FDEMBERSLT 7R EMDIRIGRET 5
SREEEEE DX UHEEE OIS SMBEEE MR T
RIS
(KR IR : 20186 2A—20235 1 A R - 201 B4 2 F—20234 1 F
e L s i e bais m— ]
2 || == (7 L A () B0% 80% t| o T
Eag% BLT% [ — A8/@
15 IV B0% I
421
10 M 40% 40% Bll = %
I 14.4%
5 ik % W0%; L o 6% o 7o 15.7%
- PR .|,|., 0% a%, * ' ’;im ‘.J..Lﬁ%
Nl i ! -55%5'5!4; A%
~20% “20% | 1g0n 160m 124% oo bocaic
- 40% —a0% L
2018/02 2019/02 2020/02 3021402 200202 (F/H) LI BEN AOEN FRES BEEA REER EREN
BEELTIR
L) WL : 201898 2FH—~20235 1 H ] - 201 8EE 2 H 20224 1H
Y 2o i) i i T
a0y b= e 1 R R () B0 8% o FEH
s95% 527% 4 B
15 0% B0% .
10 40% 40% AL _
14.4%
. i a3% &% e G6% 4% 1.9% oy
(1) TPPITTT T T T T [TTTTTT . 0% o | [ej2a% ¢ * o L LB g 15%
3.7 B AT R
= J()8 e 424 g ~2.4%
20% 20% as0% 124% oo
—401% 4%
2018/02 2019/02 2020002 2021402 202202 (%/H) PELITI B35 GEES FRES DrE8 TEEE HEE
mASA (Bl IFE
i) W : 20189 2202391 H W : 201582 H--2023 15
B EE e s S O RIREE W) L 0% —
30,000 || = HEEEMITA (1N HREHEONE Fol) 0% 80% m < T
Sog%  BLTH 4 B
15,000 BO0% 0% o
42.1%
10,000 — 40% 40% 1 :
14.4% -
5,000 20% 0% 700 &% A GE% & 4% 700 15??6
0 0% o% | Lol08% & s oo # 25% o 16%
r - 3% B2 S5 SIN g
208 208 q60% V2% oo
A% —d0%
2018/02 2019/02 2020402 2021402 2002/02 (%8 mu’rfx”:%au w&m SRS FRES BTEN FEEA CRNEN
RREL TR BBAYTEY) el
(R MR 201 85 2A-—20235 1 A W < 20184 2F 20234 1
5 . : = 100% 1005
B HENLTSE (Do L8 I R E (5 oA B
9 || =R | (1 R IR ) B0% ot PRI
copy 617 4 By
15 B0% 0% ..
10 40% 4% i g
T44%
5 208 W%} gon 2% o 66% % 7% 15.7%
I} prlinynlts {ITTrTTe T 0% 0% __mi_-‘m * * - T 28% g 15%
L7% : 55% 1%
—39 — 3% 4724 " 4%
% % A60% 124% oo
- 40% - 40%
2018/02 2009/02 2020402 2021/02 202202 (8/H) .H&Gjl B EES FRES DLDA TEDE EREA
(T |
OFMMERIZSARICEIIEA FROMERS 073713, 77 FERRNEEET S A EENIC
FETRLIEOTY, HETESLSIIERLETOTT,

66/296



EDINETOOOO

o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

GE1)
QHRENZZR (BB IE))OEERIR. 2018F3A28BOLH. B Z 700 BB DN UREE
{fi#5(22018E3BFLIBOT -9 ERTLTWEY . A BBV S7DBERIOLWTR. BEI1FED

2019 3AFRLBOFT—9ERTLTNET .

(X2)

@ TATHHET FAN V7 RORHAMREFRER A

O 773 BESERNGAFRICETAEL FEOBREED IS BAE-RMEERTLIEOTT. 7778
IC@NAFT—PREVEL A

OZEEISADIER
B & &% EiSEER(TOPIX) (BoiA#)
SOE@ENR MSC D749 77w ? R (BE AR AN —2R)
FTEEL MSCl T7—2 7T —iry e 2 F I Z (BEEiAA. BN—2)
E*EH®:NOMURA-BPI B
Soitt [ FTSEtH RE W 7 v I 2 BR<BE.AN—2)
E e EJFEJL?_’F :;-ﬂ;*f AR B T R IR — T =y O— ) ST I— 77 TR
A=

BEADBENE. REAYIELICLSRRENTEL T BN —-ADERERELTEVET,

J7 »FOAEEEER I OSUHREMES LUEEMERRL. #Hs A0S ESEERELICEDEALBLT
STRLC DMEVMEEMES UM DX CUNEEHEOFREERE/ REINTS ). EEO10%)
HEEBRSLURRD 1 DMCVHEEMRS BV THREV - ERNER - ARG ESHEUET.

67/296



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

4.0

4.4 4.0

0.05
0.01
500 0.040
500 10 0.030
10 0.025
0.80

0.80

0.03

68/296



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

12
12
100,000
0.06
(A
2023 31
@
(¢
G
20.315 15.315
2038 20 15
4
15.315
2038 15
6
20.315 15.315 2038

20 15

69/296



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(6
®)
@

Q@
@
G

20.315 15.315
2038 20 15

4

15.315
2038
15

G

20.315 15.315
2038 20 15

G
®)
¢

2023 31

70/296



(B

50

71/296

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2023
676,130,570.11 99.85
1,023,925.98 0.15
677.154,496.09
( 62,251 ) 100.00
2023
1,895,402, 665.01 282.82
445 ,526,240.19 66.48
42,766,774 14 6.38
19,622,310.20 2.93
19,176, 283.80 2.86
17,967,261.28 2.68
71,927,800.33 10.73
29,232,481.37 4.36
12,099 ,671.75 1.81
1,883,532, 148.32 281.04
670,189,339.75
( 61,611 ) 100.00
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2023

Goldman Sachs Institutional Funds, plc - Goldman

1 | aoche aeeratia Entances Income Fung 3,802,759.11 171.52 652,239,554.07 177.80 676,130,570.11 99.85
2023
1 | Ampol Ltd FRN 12709780 2080 12 .7280 | 28,030,000.00 1.02 | 28,491,775.72 1.00 | 28,097,384.12 4.19
2 | National Australia Bank Ltd FRN 10/19/71 2171 10 19 .3239 [ 26,718,000.00 1.04 | 27,795,649.12 1.02| 27,376,606.72 4.08
3 | AMP Ltd FRN 11/15/28 2028 11 15 .7984 | 27,270,000.00 1.00 | 27,216,655.15 0.99 | 27,039,558.14 4.03
4 ﬁgjggfgs(f”'ces Holdings Pty Ltd FRN 2080 10 24211 | 20,300,000.00 1.00 | 20,295,171.92 1.00 | 20,387,756.90 3.04
5 | UBS Group AG VAR 08/27/24 2024 27 .3750 [ 20,000,000.00 1.00 | 20,000,809.75 0.96 | 19,176,283.80 2.86
6 | SEEK Ltd FRN 06/20/26 2026 20 29072 [ 18,000,000.00 1.00 | 18,042,663.43 0.99 | 17,908,612.02 2.67
7 Egjg;%éo” Life Australasia Ltd FRN 2035 12 .4280 | 17,620,000.00 1.01| 17,850,108.45 1.00 | 17,574,640.13 2.62
8 | Societe Generale SA VAR 03/12/71 2171 12 .8750 [ 18,000,000.00 1.00 | 18,000,000.00 0.96 | 17,308,870.20 2.58
9 i‘l’%g%ga'th Bank of Australia FRN 2032 11 7566 | 17,000,000.00 1.00 | 17,000,000.00 1.02 | 17,279,231.80 2.58
10 | NuFarm Finance Nz Ltd FRN 04/16/71 2171 16 3724 | 18,026,800.00 0.85 | 15,278,562.62 0.91 | 16,465,379.68 2.46
11 ggigg%f & New Zealand Banking 6r VAR 2034 20 .4050 | 16,000,000.00 1.00 | 16,000,000.00 1.02 | 16,244,960.00 2.42
12 | Macquarie Bank Ltd FRN 06707732 2032 .8184 [ 15,500,000.00 1.00 | 15,513,612.78 1.01| 15,615,044.10 2.33
13 | credit Agricole SA VAR 05/29/34 2034 29 .2000 [ 17,000,000.00 1.04 | 17,707,391.00 0.89 | 15,122,884.14 2.26
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14 | cooperatieve Rabobank UA VAR 10/26/32 2032 10 26 7.0740 | 14,000,000.00 1.00 | 14,000,000.00 1.04 | 14,561,397.20 2.17

15 | Pacific National Finance Pty Ltd 3.8% 2031 3.8000 | 15,500,000.00 1.00 | 15,439,609.72 0.81 | 12,592,218.29 1.88
09/08/31

16 | Challenger Life Co Ltd VAR 09/16/37 2037 9 16 7.1860 | 12,000,000.00 1.00 | 11,983,500.25 1.02 | 12,190,092.00 1.82

17 XE@BERS EQUITY BANK FRN AUAUD 03/05/2119 2119 8.0660 | 12,030,000.00 1.01| 12,152,619.29 1.01| 12,099,671.75 1.81

18 | Bendigo & Adelaide Bank Ltd FRN 11/19/30 2030 11 19 5.0201 | 11,750,000.00 1.00 | 11,723,316.16 0.98 | 11,518,479.41 1.72

19 | MACQUARIE GRO AUD 100 PFD 7.2922 100,648.00 |  98.59 98| 106.88| 10,757,258.24 1.61

g | Commonwealth Bank of Australia FRN 2032 14 5.2457 | 10,000,000.00 0.99 .01 0.99 | 9,881,713.40 1.47
04/14/32

21 | Bank of Queensland Ltd FRN 05/19/32 2032 19 4.8201 | 10,300,000.00 0.98 | 10,003,216.07 0.96 | 9,850,585.35 1.47

2 | Australia&NewZealand Banking Gr FRN 2032 12 5.7330 |  9,500,000.00 1.00 .00 1.02| 9,673,707.50 1.44
08/12/32

23 | Societe Generale SA 5% 05/19/27 2027 19 5.0000 [ 9,844,000.00 1.06 | 10,400,334.97 0.95 [ 9,367,443.59 1.40

24 | Insurance Australia Group Ltd FRN 06/15/45 2045 15 5.5160 | 8,840,000.00 1.00 .83 0.99 | 8,748,320.89 1.31

(2023
1 Yarra A$ Cash Reserves Fund 29,232,481.37 1.00 29,232,481.37 1.00 29,232,481.37 4.36
(2023

1 | 90-DAY BANK BILL Jun23 2023 481,506,523.12 482,443,881.24 71.99

2 | 90-DAY BANK BILL Dec23 2023 12 482,432,095.84 482,420,310.44 71.98

3 | 90-DAY BANK BILL Sep23 2023 482,610,244.84 482,384,963.98 71.98

4 | 90-DAY BANK BILL Mar23 2023 248,110,515.00 247,812,460.00 36.98

5 | 90-DAY BANK BILL Mar24 2024 235,543,252.14 235,813,715.34 35.19
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2022 2023
2013 76,379,830.57 9,965,276,494 9.13 1,191
2014 49,744,189.17 6,490,124,361 8.24 1,075
2015 59,912,168.14 7,816,740,577 5.98 780
2016 56,970,642.30 7,432,959,701 6.40 835
2017 30,990,659.53 4,043,351,349 6.59 860
2018 28,831,434.17 3,761,637,216 6.03 787
2019 48,446,307.21 6,320,789,702 5.48 715
2020 49,788,786.22 6,495,942,938 5.35 698
2021 47,417,571.77 6,186,570,589 5.40 705
10

2022 37,544,885.38 4,898,481,196 4.62 603
2022 50,567,024.26 6,597,479,655 5.36 699
49,761,004.44 6,492,318,249 5.51 719

46,265,378.79 6,036,243,971 5.16 673

45,333,737.77 5,914,692,767 5.19 677

40,611,424.47 5,298,572,551 4.93 643

39,798,252.99 5,192,478,068 5.02 655

39,586,458.27 5,164,845,210 4.93 643

37,544,885.38 4,898,481,196 4.62 603

10 38,757,976.89 5,056,753,245 4.56 595

11 41,976,940.68 5,476,731,451 4.81 628

12 42,300,602.70 5,518,959,634 4.87 635

2023 43,097,841.34 5,622,975,360 5.11 667
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2012 26
2018 28

2013 89,503,879.46 8,228,091,639 10.13 931
2014 129,976,554.66 11,948,744,670 9.88 908
2015 164,865,354.37 15,156,072,027 9.10 837
2016 143,729,212.38 13,213,026,494 8.90 818
2017 117,232,957.90 10,777,225,820 9.00 827
2018 171,859,373.26 15,799,032,184 8.94 822
2019 568,908,701.96 52,299,776,971 8.78 807
2020 594,705,892.55 54,671,312,702 8.10 745
2021 456,149,292.13 41,933,804,426 7.99 735
20;2 323,125,888.30 29,704,962,911 7.67 705
2022 410,782,412.15 37,763,227,149 7.87 723
388,278,029.71 35,694,399,271 7.81 718

365,022,141.01 33,556,485,423 7.76 713

355,231,578.11 32,656,438,976 7.70 708

342,249,993.17 31,463,041,872 7.64 702

339,600,333.28 31,219,458,638 7.66 704

330,167,402.35 30,352,289,298 7.67 705

323,125,888.30 29,704,962,911 7.67 705

10 320,267,726.99 29,442,212,142 7.61 700

11 317,211,724.69 29,161,273,851 7.67 705

12 310,014,671.11 28,499,648,715 7.68 706

2023 307,697,829.82 28,286,661,495 7.75 712
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2013 7.469,784,413 10,172

2014 8,184,213 ,894 10,011

2015 10,775,093,560 9,337

2016 5.,360,559,728 9,138

2017 4,603,090,032 9,271

2018 4,252,511,012 9,244

2019 4,930,245, 467 9,134

2020 3,913,809,943 8,602

2021 5,677,136, 630 8,733

10 4,371,238,255 8,386
2022 ’ ’ ’ ’

2022 5,677,492,783 8,662

5,427,351 ,411 8,596

5,252,184,299 8,542

4,820,283, 147 8,474

4,780,892,164 8,395

4,971,855,476 8,411

4,262,066, 114 8,404

4,371,238, 255 8,386

10 4,362,317,297 8,304

11 4.524.,229.878 8,350

12 4,402,118 ,595 8,335

2023 4,536,029, 252 8,389
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2018 104,800,963.23 13,673,381,673 10.16 1,326
2019 331,712,144.29 43,278,483,466 10.24 1,336
2020 347,746,052.51 45,370,427,471 9.72 1,268
2021 301,439,921.49 39,328,866, 557 9.81 1,280
20;2 191,752,803.56 25,017,988,280 9.50 1,239
2022 264,137,686.86 34,462,044,005 9.72 1,268
267,373,405.96 34,884,208,276 9.65 1,259

250,492,818.29 32,681,798,002 9.60 1,253

240,169,333.23 31,334,892,907 9.53 1,243

206,927,244.77 26,997,797,625 9.47 1,236

197,025,200.49 25,705,877,908 9.49 1,238

195,731,612.30 25,537,103,457 9.51 1,241

191,752,803.56 25,017,988,280 9.50 1,239

10 187,589,344.98 24,474,781,840 9.43 1,230

11 186,203,540.93 24,293,975,985 9.52 1,242

12 182,681,767.06 23,834,490,148 9.54 1,245

2023 182,359,340.70 23,792,423,181 9.64 1,258
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2012 26 0.770 100
2013

2013 10 0.840 110
2014

2014 10 0.760 99
2015

2015 10 0.360 47
2016

2016 10 0.360 47
2017

2017 10 0.360 47
2018

2018 10 0.360 47
2019

2019 10 0.320 42
2020

2020 10 0.240 31
2021

10

2021 10 0.195 25
2022

2022 0.015 2

0.015 2

0.015 2

0.015 2

0.015 2

0.015 2

0.015 2

0.015 2

10 0.015 2

11 0.015 2

12 0.015 2

2023 0.015 2
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2012 26 0.770 71
2013

2013 10 0.840 77
2014

2014 10 0.840 77
2015

2015 10 0.540 50
2016

2016 10 0.480 44
2017

2017 10 0.480 44
2018

2018 10 0.480 44
2019

2019 10 0.480 44
2020

2020 10 0.480 44
2021

10

2021 10 0.300 28
2022

2022 0.020 2

0.020 2

0.020 2

0.020 2

0.020 2

0.020 2

0.020 2

0.020 2

10 0.020 2

11 0.020 2

12 0.020 2

2023 0.020 2
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2012 26 440
2013

2013 10 480
2014

2014 10 480
2015

2015 10 280
2016

2016 10 240
2017

2017 10 240
2018

2018 10 240
2019

2019 10 240
2020

2020 10 240
2021

10

2021 10 240
2022

2022 20

20

20

20

20

20

20

20

10 20

11 20

12 20

2023 20
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2018 28 0.150 20
2018

2018 10 0.360 47
2019

2019 10 0.360 47
2020

2020 10 0.360 47
2021

10

2021 10 0.315 41
2022

2022 0.025 3

0.025 3

0.025 3

0.025 3

0.025 3

0.025 3

0.025 3

0.025 3

10 0.025 3

11 0.025 3

12 0.025 3

2023 0.025 3
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2012 26 1.00
2013
2013 10 0.55
2014
2014 10 18.20
2015
2015 10 13.04
2016
2016 10 8.59
2017
2017 10 3.03
2018
2018 10 3.15
2019
2019 10 3.47
2020
2020 10 5.42
2021
10
2021 10 10.83
2022
x 100
10.00 10.00
10,000

10.00
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2012 26 9.00
2013
2013 10 5.82
2014
2014 10 0.61
2015
2015 10 3.74
2016
2016 10 6.52
2017
2017 10 4.67
2018
2018 10 3.58
2019
2019 10 2.28
2020
2020 10 4.57
2021
10
2021 10 0.25
2022
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2012 26 6.12
2013
2013 10 3.14
2014
2014 10 1.94
2015
2015 10 0.87
2016
2016 10 4.08
2017
2017 10 2.30
2018
2018 10 1.41
2019
2019 10 3.20
2020
2020 10 4.31
2021
10
2021 10 1.23
2022
2018 28 3.10
2018
2018 10 4.33
2019
2019 10 1.56
2020
2020 10 4.63
2021
10
2021 10 0.05
2022
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2012 - 19,829,446.66 11,463,030.25 8,366,416.41
5013 (19,829, 446.66) (11,463,030.25) (8,366,416.41)
2013 10 1,596,945.46 3,928,264.03 6,035,007.84
0Lt (1,596,945.46) (3,928,264.03) (6,035,097.84)
2014 10 7,083,728.95 3,106,480.39 10,012, 346.40
5015 (7,083,728.95) (3,106,480.39) (10,012, 346.40)
2015 10 2,126,238.83 3,240,229.78 8,898,355.45
010 (2,126,238.83) (3,240,229.78) (8.898,355.45)
2016 10 1,300,852.71 5,499,332.83 4,699,875.33
017 (1,300,852.71) (5,499,332.83) (4,699,875.33)
2017 10 1,608,479.14 1,524,040.01 4,784,314.46
5018 (1,608,479.14) (1,524,040.01) (4,784,314.46)
2018 10 5,286,066.20 1,223,293.90 8,847,086.76
5019 (5,286,066.20) (1,223,293.90) (8,847,086.76)
2019 10 4,022,685.66 3,563,298.97 9,306,473.45
5020 (4,022,685.66) (3,563,298.97) (9,306,473.45)
2020 10 5,983,505.31 6,514,109.23 8,775,869.53
5091 (5,983,505.31) (6,514,109.23) (8,775,869.53)
20210 10 2,880,885.60 3,532,312.77 8,124,442.36
5092 (2,880, 885.60) (3,532,312.77) (8,124,442 .36)
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2012 2% 19,714,285.92 10,878,127.71 8,836,158.21
2013 (19,714,285.92) (10,878,127.71) (8,836,158.21)
2013 10 6,921,628.11 2,600,540.12 13,157,246.20
2014 (6,921,628.11) (2,600,540.12) (13,157,246.20)
2014 10 8,194,864.28 3,241,215.43 18,110,895.05
5015 (8,194,864.28) (3,241,215.43) (18,110,895.05)
2015 10 2,541,868.77 4,511,290.73 16,141,473.09
2016 (2,541,868.77) (4,511,290.73) (16,141,473.09)
2016 10 2,252,957.23 5,373,104.64 13,021,325.68
2017 (2,252,957.23) (5,373,104.64) (13,021,325.68)
2017 10 8,936,500.50 2,726,972.47 19,230,853.71
2018 (8,936,500.50) (2,726,972.47) (19,230,853.71)
2018 10 47,528,291.15 1,985,509.24 64,773,635.62
2019 (47,528,291.15) (1,985,509.24) (64,773,635.62)
2019 10 23,448,277.71 14,846,546.86 73,375,366.47
2020 (23,448,277.71) (14,846,546.86) (73,375,366.47)
2020 10 14,176,463.78 30,441,499.00 57,110,331.25
2021 (14,176,463.78) (30,441,499.00) (57,110,331.25)
20210 10 7,054,471.36 22,012,515.77 42,152,286.84
2022 (7,054,471.36) (22,012,515.77) (42,152,286.84)
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2012 26 977,974.90 243,624.93 734,349.97
2013 (977,974.90) (243,624.93) (734,349.97)
2013 10 313,030.55 229,848.17 817,532.35
2014 (313,030.55) (229,848.17) (817,532.35)
2014 10 778,849.13 442,321.19 1,154,060.29
2015 (778,849.13) (442,321.19) (1,154,060.29)
2015 10 44,419.21 611,864.54 586,614.96
2016 (44,419.21) (611,864.54) (586,614.96)
2016 10 120,877.06 210,985.11 496,506.91
2017 (120,877.06) (210,985.11) (496,506.91)
2017 10 91,999.35 128,484.98 460,021.28
2018 (91,999.35) (128,484.98) (460,021.28)
2018 10 164,999.42 85,245.92 539,774.78
2019 (164,999.42) (85,245.92) (539,774.78)
2019 10 72,611.33 157,403.27 454,982.84
2020 (72,611.33) (157,403.27) (454,982.84)
2020 10 323,966.96 128,902.01 650,047.79
2021 (323,966.96) (128,902.01) (650,047.79)
20210 10 192,759.47 321,564.16 521,243.10
(192,759.47) (321,564.16) (521,243.10)

2022
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2018 28 10,328, 962.52 14,660.21 10,314,302.31
2o (10.328.962.52) (14.660.21) (10.314.302.31)
2018 10 25,885,390.67 3,802,649.64 32,397,043.34
2o (25.885.390.67) (3.802.649.64) (32.397.043.34)
2015 10 12,971,135.46 9,577,566.21 35,790, 612.59
o (12.971.135.46) (9.577.566.21) (35.790.612.59)
2020 10 8,235,918.71 13,297,369.12 30,729,162.18
201 (8.235.918.71) (13.297.369.12) (30.729.162.18)
20210 L0 4,610,461.65 15,165,687.84 20,173,935.99
o (4.610.461.65) (15.165.687.84) (20.173.935.99)
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HERE = HErE
Ampod Ltd FRMN 1 2/068/80 672800 4.19%
Mational Australia Bank Ltd FRMN 10719471 7.3239% 4.08%
ANP Ltd FRM 11/15/28 E.7984% 4.03%
Aushlet Services Holdings Pry Ltd FRN 10/06/80 6.4211% 1.04%
UBS Group AG VAR 08/37/24 4.3750% 2.86%
SEEK Ltd FRM 06/20026 6,907 2% 2.67%
Resolution Life Australasia Lid FRIM 12/08/35 6, 42800 2.62%
Sodete Generale SA VAR 0371271 4.8750% 2.58%
Commonwealth Bark of Australia FRN 11/08/32 E,FCEAY 2.58%
Mufarm Finance MNZ Ltd FEN 04/ 16/71 Ta724% 2.46%
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SRR (1 DS B8, 202381 BRERE)

o || e |
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2022 30

2022 30 2021 30
©) 735,144,294 67,581,815 998,789,760 91,818,743
(b) 19,717 1,813 1,237 114
©) 1,100,000 101,123 2,070,000 190,295
2,069,397 190,240 6,336,073 582,475
©) 932,960 85,767 8,483,234 779,864

60 6

@ 12 27,387,500 2,517,733 24,270,879 2,231,222
766,653,928 70,478,496  1,039,951,183 95,602,712
©) 9,214,318 847,072 2,376,974 218,515
©) 14,430,000 1,326,550 7,443,807 684,309
11,249,819 1,034,196 8,466,774 778,351
@) 2,064,234 189,765 6,344,595 583,259
@) 1,406,396 129,290 2,044,490 187,950
') 1,397,774 128,497 2,081,171 191,322
© 112,559 10,348 83,111 7,640
(b) 95,102 8,743 128,994 11,858
74,455 6,845 59,102 5,433
@) 61,253 5,631 85,810 7,889
©) 58,966 5,421 63,771 5,862
57,266 5,264 58,860 5,411
) 37,505 3,448 24,456 2,248
(b) 37,389 3,437 2,353 216
10,839 996 1,267 116
40,307,875 3,705,503 29,265,535 2,690,381
726,346,053 66,772,993  1,010,685,648 92,912,332
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2022 30

2022 30 2021 30
(b) 34,700 3,190 4,611 424
49,573,442 4,557,287 26,696,944 2,454,250
16,633,282 1,529,098 (30,535,208) (2,807,102)
(37,690, 865) (3,464,921) 41,355,347 3,801,797
9,688,508 890,665 23,104,559 2,124,002
38,239,067 3,515,317 60,626,253 5,573,371
@) 6,862,182 630,840 8,557,665 786,706
() 6,862,182 630,840 8,557,665 786,706
() 433,372 39,840 539,646 49,610
© 432,605 39,769 493,589 45,376
@) 257,332 23,657 320,912 29,501
) 133,004 12,227 136,055 12,508
) 85,777 7,885 106,971 9,834
(b) 81,678 7,509 53,789 4,945
68,202 6,270 176,389 16,215
55,992 5,147 53,769 4,943
48,434 4,453 2,629 242
15,320,760 1,408,437 18,999,079 1,746,585
22,918,307 2,106,880 41,627,174 3,826,786
(h) 10 30,763,336 2,828,073 50,746,572 4,665,132
(7.845,029) (721,194) (9,119,398) (838, 346)
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2022 30
2022 30 2021 30
1,010,685,648 92,912,332 1,196,862,424 110,027,563
153,671,917 14,127,059 304,020,223 27,948,579
(430,166,483)  (39,545,205)  (481,077,601)  (44,225,464)
(7,845,029) (721,194) (9,119,398) (838, 346)
726,346,053 66,772,993  1,010,685,648 92,912,332
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2022 30

2022 30 2021 30
(7,845,029) (721,194) (9,119,398) (838,346)
931 86 (4,002) (368)
(h) 10 30,763,336 2,828,073 50,746,572 4,665,132
(34,700) (3,190) (4,611) (424)
81,678 7,509 53,789 4,945
22,966,216 2,111,284 41,672,350 3,830,939
©) 970,000 89,172 6,230,000 572,724
4,266,676 392,236 16,889,466 1,552,649

(60) ®

263,645,466 24,236,928 182,172,348 16,747,104
©) 6,986,193 642,241 7,443,807 684,309
2,783,045 255,845 (7,907,726) (726,957)
©) 29,448 2,707 (15,176) (1,395)
15,353 1,411 26,071 2,397
) 13,049 1,200 3,761 346
9,572 880 (290) Q@n
(1,594) 147) 1,764 162
©) (4,805) (442) (2,970) (273)
@) (24,557) (2,258) (10,751) (988)
() (33,892) (3,116) (28,126) (2,586)
@) (638,094) (58,660) (3,104,768) (285,421)
() (683,397) (62,825) (1,197,899) (110,123)
6,837,344 628,557 (17,855,194) (1,641,428)
307,135,963 28,235,009 224,316,667 20,621,431
16,220 1,491 4,345 399
(46,642) (4,288) (51,436) (4,729)
307,105,541 28,232,212 224,269,576 20,617,102
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2022 30 2021 30
161,222,191 14,821,156 298,438,345 27,435,437
(434,446,844)  (39,938,698)  (484,298,545)  (44,521,565)
(30,763,336) (2,828,073)  (50,746,572) (4,665,132)
(303,987,989)  (27,945,616)  (236,606,772)  (21,751,261)

(931) (86) 4,002 368
3,116,621 286,511 (12,333,194) (1,133,791)
24,270,879 2,231,222 36,604,073 3,365,012
27,387,500 2,517,733 24,270,879 2,231,222
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2022 30
453,520,781 744,335,624 2022 30
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2,056,491 2021 30
517,009,274 772,475,205 2021 30
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2022 30 19,064 27,368,436 27,387,500
2021 30 57,522 24,213,357 24,270,879
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2022 30
2022 30
710,205,307 710,205,307
24,938,987 24,938,987
710,205,307 24,938,987 735,144,294
2022 30
2022 30
9,214,318 9,214,318
9,214,318 9,214,318
2021 30
2021 30
990,368,724 990,368,724
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990,368,724 8,421,036 998,789,760
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2022 30
@ @
¢ ( )(1) @

13,128 (469,159) (456,031) 380,000 (76,031)
2,812 2,812 2,812
1,868 1,868 1,868
(21,401) (21,401) (21,401)
79,845 (101,993) (22,148) (22,148)
12,667,414 (4,545,801) 8,121,613  (6,930,000) 1,191,613
11,331 (76,355) (65,024) (65,024)

(356,884) (356,884) 356,884
8,893,990 (280,631) 8,613,359 (7,500,000) 1,113,359
3,222,539 (3,257,855) (35,316) (35,316)
46,060 (104,239) (58,179) (58,179)
24,938,987 (9,214,318) 15,724,669  (13,693,116) 2,031,553
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2021 30
(€Y} (€Y}
C ) w @
120,853 120,853 120,853
4,110,951 4,110,951 (3,723,807) 387,144
(28,149) (28,149) (28,149)
(1,086,672) (1,086,672) 1,030,000 (56,672)
29,362 (4,841) 24,521 24,521
657 657 657
(16,345) (16,345) (16,345)
4,102,805 4,102,805 (3,720,000) 382,805
19,609 (1,093,312) (1,073,703) 1,040,000 (33,703)
17,431 (121,477) (104,046) (104,046)
19,368 (26,178) (6,810) (6,810)
8,421,036 (2,376,974) 6,044,062 (5,373,807) 670,255
(€Y}
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10 100
10,000 10,000
10 100
10 100
2022 30 2021 30
(

2020 30 73,253,237 454,983 9,306,473 35,552,487
14,426,875 323,967 5,983,506 8,191,101
(30,410,208) (128,902) (6,514,109) (13,023,426)
2021 30 57,269,904 650,048 8,775,870 30,720,162
6,754,009 192,759 2,880,886 4,610,462
(21,924,073) (321,564) (3,532,362) (15,156,688)
2022 30 42,099,840 521,243 8,124,394 20,173,936
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322,736,489

7.665979 457,423,045

7.987145

46,972,199 8,386.511655 70,438,984 8,733.380547
58,396,694 4.621410 65,643,308 5.403162
298,240,671 9.505029 417,180,311 9.809525
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27,368,436 19,064 27,387,500

735,144,294 735,144,294

2,069,397 2,069,397
2,052,737 2,052,737
27,368,436 739,285,492 766,653,928

9,214,318 9,214,318

11,249,819 11,249,819
19,843,738 19,843,738

40,307,875 40,307,875

2021 30

24,213,357 57,522 24,270,879

998,789,760 998,789,760

6,336,073 6,336,073
10,554,471 10,554,471
24,213,357 1,015,737,826 1,039,951,183

2,376,974 2,376,974

8,466,774 8,466,774
18,421,787 18,421,787

29,265,535 29,265,535
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2022 30

504,179,101 68,298,923 76,805,562 30,981,517 680,265,103

504,179,101 68,298,923 76,805,562 30,981,517 680,265,103

2021 30

714,703,337 73,290,944 145,737,450 33,834,792 967,566,523

714,703,337 73,290,944 145,737,450 33,834,792 967,566,523
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2022 30 2021 30
27,387,500 24,270,879
19,717 1,237
1,100,000 2,070,000
24,938,987 8,421,036
2,069,397 6,336,073
932,960 8,483,234
60
56,448,621 49,582,459
2022 30 2021 30
100.00 100.00
100.00 100.00
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2022 30 2021 30
I6)) 8,326,008 1.15 16,863,967 1.67
w 95,551 0.01
(€)) 18,946,877 2.61 102,256 0.01
w 7,247,134 0.72
1) 19,064 0.00® 57,522 0.01
27,387,500 3.77 24,270,879 2.41
©)
380,000 0.05
1,030,000 0.10
720,000 0.10 1,040,000 0.10
1,100,000 0.15 2,070,000 0.20
€Y
&)
® 0.005
O]
2022 30 2021 30
(€))
3,723,807 0.37
6,930,000 0.96
3,720,000 0.37
7,500,000 1.03
14,430,000 1.99 7,443,807 0.74
¢))
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2022 30

4,104,284 710,205,307  97.78

710,205,307  97.78
05/10/2022  AUD 6,317,193 JPY 583,372,639 Morgan Stanley & Co 48,155 0.01
06/10/2022  AUD 299,312 JPY 27,755,000 Westpac Banking Corp 1,027 0.00
05/10/2022 JPY 1,271,792,707 AUD 13,247,744 Morgan Stanley & Co 419,192 0.06
06/10/2022  JPY 10,991,646 AUD 116,260 Citibank NA 1,868 0.00
06/10/2022  JPY 27,673,000 AUD 286,073 Royal Bank of Canada 11,331 0.00
06/10/2022  JPY 37,929,676 AUD 394,505 ‘B\gﬁgﬁ;'g rﬁﬂg 'ﬁﬁg Zealand 13,128 0.00
06/10/2022 JPY 83,624,000 AUD 853,681 Westpac Banking Corp 45,033 0.01
06/10/2022 JPY 230,263,784 AUD 2,417,760 HSBC Bank PLC 56,904 0.01
05/10/2022  USD 58,000 AUD 87,397 BNP Paribas SA 2,812 0.00
05/10/2022  USD 208,884 AUD 301,940 HSBC Bank PLC 22,941 0.00
05/10/2022 USD 102,731,775 AUD 150,886,422 Standard Chartered Bank 8,893,990 1.22
05/10/2022 USD 103,912,769 AUD 152,651,002 Morgan Stanley & Co 8,966,231 1.23
22/12/2022  USD 95,952,957 AUD 145,785,503 Morgan Stanley & Co 3,233,836 0.45
22/12/2022  USD 95,952,957 AUD 145,796,801 UBS AG 3,222,539 0.44

24,938,987 3.43
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05/10/2022  AUD 372,094 USD 253,000 Credit Suisse (21,401)  (0.00)
05/10/2022  AUD 728,427 USD 517,440 Royal Bank of Canada (76,355) (0.01)
05/10/2022  AUD 1,300,371 USD 901,658 HSBC Bank PLC (101,993)  (0.01)
05/10/2022  AUD 5,629,320 USD 3,799,533 Standard Chartered Bank (280,155)  (0.04)
05/10/2022 AUD 7,293,659 JPY 688,420,068 Westpac Banking Corp (104,239) (0.02)
05/10/2022  AUD 7,803,443 USD 5,317,786 égigﬁé'g rgﬂg m’ Zealand (467,396)  (0.06)
05/10/2022  AUD 145,979,350 USD 95,952,957 UBS AG (3,257,855)  (0.45)
05/10/2022  AUD 153,360,737 USD 101,008,135 Morgan Stanley & Co (3,738,871)  (0.52)
06/10/2022  AUD 435,423 JPY 40,679,498 g;ﬁgﬁé'grzﬂg m Zealand (1,763)  (0.00)
06/10/2022  AUD 13,879,041 JPY 1,332,533,296 Morgan Stanley & Co (441,800)  (0.06)
22/12/2022  AUD 1,413,963 USD 917,000 Morgan Stanley & Co (10,180)  (0.00)
06/10/2022  JPY 26,620,808 AUD 286,572 Standard Chartered Bank (476) (0.00)
06/10/2022 JPY  2,675,013,488 AUD 29,105,466 Royal Bank of Scotland PLC (356,884)  (0.05)
06/10/2022 JPY  2,680,013,488 AUD 29,157,267 Morgan Stanley & Co (354,950)  (0.05)
(9,214,318)  (1.27)
710,205,307  97.78
24,938,987 3.43
(9,214,318)  (1.27)
416,077 0.06
726,346,053  100.00
AUD
JPY
USD
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2021 30

5,817,827 990,368,724  97.99
990,368,724  97.99

12/11/2021  AUD 2,165,085 USD 1,543,000 HSBC Bank PLC 29,362 0.00
17/11/2021  AUD 352,265 JPY 28,334,860 JPMorgan Chase & Co 657 0.00
17/11/2021  AUD 1,243,753 JPY 98,649,502 Royal Bank of Scotland PLC 19,609 0.00
12/11/2021  USD 665,236 AUD 901,410 UBS AG 19,368 0.00
12/11/2021  USD 1,076,581 AUD 1,472,705 State Street Bank & Trust Co. 17,431 0.00
12/11/2021  USD 4,506,323 AUD 6,116,514 é;igﬁ;igriﬂg 'ﬁ%’ Zealand 120,853 0.01
12/11/2021 USD 152,511,897 AUD 206,986,361 Barclays Bank PLC 4,110,951 0.41
12/11/2021 USD 152,511,897 AUD 206,994,508 Royal Bank of Canada 4,102,805 0.41
8,421,036 0.83
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12/11/2021 AUD 1,325,663 USD 965,582 Morgan Stanley & Co (10,834) (0.00)
12/11/2021  AUD 1,886,332 USD 1,383,158 BNP Paribas SA (28,149)  (0.00)
12/11/2021  AUD 4,969,336  USD 3,609,119 UBS AG (26,178)  (0.00)
12/11/2021  AUD 7,252,944 USD 5,326,352 gg?te Street Bank & Trust (119,455)  (0.01)
17/11/2021  AUD 278,098 JPY 22,573,954 ﬁgﬁte Street Bank & Trust (2,022)  (0.00)
17/1172021  JPY 36,272,794 AUD 450,192 Citibank NA (82)  (0.00)
17/1172021  JPY 232,247,927 AUD 2,886,810 HSBC Bank PLC (4,841)  (0.00)
24/11/2021  JPY 13,096,500 AUD 166,378 Morgan Stanley & Co (3,860) (0.00)

24/11/2021 JPY  2,770,789,195 AUD 35,476,819 Royal Bank of Scotland PLC (1,093,312) (0.11)
24/11/2021 JpY  2,770,789,196 AUD 35,470,097 Citibank NA (1,086,590) (0.11)

12/11/2021  USD 1,583,190 AUD 2,193,003 Morgan Stanley & Co (1,651)  (0.00)

(2,376,974)  (0.23)

990,368,724 97.99
8,421,036 0.83
(2,376,974)  (0.23)

14,272,862 1.41

1,010,685,648 100.00

AUD
JPY
usD
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GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Staternents of Financial Position
As at 30 September 2022

Hotes 30-Sep-2022 30-Sep-2021
AUD AUD
Assets
Current Assets
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 3c), 4 T35, 144 264 958,789 760
Interest recaivable 3 (b) 19717 1,237
Due from brokers:

Collateral amounts 3 (&) 1,100,000 2,070,000
Receivable for investments sold 2 2 060,397 6,336,073
Recaivable for Units subscribed 3g), 8 932 960 8,483 234
Cither assels &0 -
Cash and cash equivalents 3(d), 12 27,387 500 24,270,879
Total Assets 766,653,828 1,039,951,183
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Financial iabilites at fair value through profit or loss 3ic), 4 9214318 2376974
Duse to brokers:

Collateral amounts 3(e) 14,430.000 7443807
Payable for investments purchased 2 11,248 819 8 458 774
Payable for Units redeemed 3ig), 8 2,064 234 G, 344 595
Irvestrment managemant fees pavable 7 (&) 1,406,386 2,044 490
Distribaution fees payable 7 () 1,387,774 2,081,171
Adrmanistratian and fransfer agent fees payable Te) 112,559 83,11
Manager fees payvable 7 (B} 95102 128,594
Liegal fees payable 74,455 59102
Agent company fees payable 7 (g 61,253 85810
Trustee fees payable 7 (=) 58, 966 63,771
Audit fees payable 57,266 58,880
Cuslodian service fees payable TN 37,505 24,456
Interest payable 3 (b} 37389 2353
Miscellaneous fees payable 10,838 1,267
Total Liabilities (excluding Met Assets Attributable to

Helders of Redeemable Participating Units) 40,307,875 29,265,535
MNet Assats Attributable to Holders of Redeemablea

Participating Units 726,348,053 1,010,685,648
The scoempasying nobes fom an istegral part of Se fnancial salements. 10
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GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the Year Ended 30 September 2022

Motes 30-Sep-2022 30-Sep-2021
AUD AUD
Income
Interest income 3 34 700 4611
Met realized gaind(loss) on financial assets and financial
lizbiliies at fair value through profit or loss on:

Imvestiments 45 573 442 26,6596 944

Foreign currency 16,633,282 (30,535,208)
Met change in unrealized gaind(loss) on financial assets and

fimancial labilties at fair value through profit or loss on:

Imvestiments (37 690 BSS) 41,355,347

Foreign currency 0BEE 508 23 104 559
Met Income 38,238,067 60,626,253
Cperating Expenses
Imvestment management fees T (a) 6,862 182 B 557 BES
Distribation fees 7 (d) 6562182 8557665
Marager lees 7k 433 372 530 645
Administration and transfer agent fees 7 {e) 432 605 453,589
Agent compary fees 7 (gl 257,332 320,912
Custodian service fees T (F 133,004 136,055
Trustee fees T e B3 77T 106,971
Interest expense 3 81,678 53,789
Legal fees 68,202 176,389
Audit fees 55,802 53,769
Miscellaneous expernss 48 434 2628
Total Operating Expenses 15,320,760 18,898,073
Met Income from Operations 22,918,307 41,627,174
Finance Costs:
Distribations to participating Unitholders 3{h), 10 30,763 336 50,746,572
Change in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of
Redeamable Participating Units from Operations (7.845,029) (9,119,398)
The sconmpasying nobes fom an integral part of Se fnancial salements. 11
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GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Statements of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units
For the Year Ended 30 September 2022

Hotes 30-Sep-2022 30-Sep-2021
AUD AUD
Met Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating
Linits at Beginning of Year 1,010,685,648 1,196,862, 424
Tatal Proceeds from redeemable participating Units issued 8 153,671,917 304,020,223
Total Payments for redeemable participating Units redeemed 8 (430,165 4583) (481,077 601)
Change in net as=ets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating Units from operations (7,845 028) (9,115, 398)
Met Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Participating Units at Year End 726,346,053 1,010,685,648
The scoompasrgdng robes fom an nSegral part of e fnancial stabsments. 12
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Staternents of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended 30 September 2022

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Change in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable

participating Units from operations
Adjustment for:
Exchange gainsflosses) on cash
Distributions to participating Unitholders
Interest income
Irterest expense
Taotal
Met {Increase)/Decrease in Operating Assets:
Due from brokers:
Collateral amounts
Recevable far investments sold
Cither assels
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loes
Met Increasel/{Decrease) in Operating Liabilities:
Due to brokers:
Collateral amounts
Payable for investments purchased
Admanistration and transfer agent fees payable
Legal fees payable
Custodian service fees payable
Miscellaneaus fees payable
Audit fees payable
Trustee fees payable
Agent company fees payable
Manager fees pavable
Irvestrment managemsant fees pavable
Distribution fees payable
Financial liabilites at fair value through profit or loss
Cash Provided byi{Used in) Operating Activities
Interest received

Hotes 30-Sep-2022  30-Sep-2021

3{n), 10

3 (e)
2

3 ()
2
7(c)
7if

7 (&)

7 k)
7 {a)
T {d)

Interest paid
Net Cash Provided by/{Used in) Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:

Proceeds received from redeemable participating Units issued
Payments for redeemable participating Units redeemed
Distribations to participating Unitholders

Met Cash Provided byi{Used in) Financing Activities

Exchange gainsf(losses) on cash
Met increase/{decrease) in cash
Cash and cash equivalents at Beginning of Year

Cash and cash equivalents at End of Year

The scoempasying nobes fom an integral par of Se fnancial satements.
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AUD AUD
{7,845,029) (2,112,398)
931 {4,002)
30,763 338 50,746,572
{34, 700) {4,611)
B1.678 53 789
22,966,216 41,672,360
970,000 6,230,000
4,266,676 16,860,466
(50) —
253 545 465 182 172 348
6,986,193 7,443 807
2,783,045 (7,907 726)
29,448 {15,176)
15,353 26,071
13,049 3,761
8572 (280
{1,504) 1,764
(4,B05) (2,8970)
{24,557) {10,751}
(33 892) (28,126
{538 004) (3,104, 758)
{683,397 (1,197 B99)
6,837,344 {17,855, 194)
307,135,963 224,316,667
16,220 4,345
A5 542 {51, 436)
307,105,541 224,268,576
161,222 191 298 438 345
(434 445 B44) (484 298 545)
30,763 336 50,746 572
(303,867 ,589) (236,606,772)
{531 4,002
316,621 (12,333 194)
24 270,879 36604073
27,387,500 24,270,879
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GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Heotes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 Saptember 2022

Organization

GS Australa Hybrid Secunties Fund (the "Sub-Trust’] is a sub-trust of the MUGC GS Cayman Fund (the “Trust’),
The Trust = an open-ended exempted umbrella unit trust established by a trust deed under the Trusts Act 2011
{Revision) af the Cayman [glands dated 10 Febauary 2010 (a3 supplementad of amended frorm trme to Hme, the “Trust
Dead”) executed by Brown Brothers Hamiman Trust Company (Cayman) Limited (the “Trustee™) and Mitsubishi LUFJ
Investor Services & Banking (Luxembourg) S5.A (the "Manager’). The Trust is regulated under the Mutual Funds Act
(Reviged)

Gelbdman Sachs Asset Management International ("GSAMITY), a retated party to the Sub-Trust, serves a8 Investrment
Manager pursuant to an investment management agreemsnt ("Management Agreement’ with the Sub.Trust
The Imeestment Manager i responsible for overseeing and monitanng the day-to-day operations of the Sub-Trust's
affairs regarding thes invesiments.

The investiment Manager appointed Goldman Sachs Asse! Management (Singapore) Ple. Lid. ((GS Smgapare”) (untd
31 March 2021) and Yarra Funds Management Limited (“Yarra). each a related pariy of the Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.
("Goldman Sachs”) as Investment Advisor pursuant o a Master Intercompany Sub-Advisory Agreement and a Master
Intercompany Sub-Advisory and FPartcipating Affiliate Services Agreement, respectively (collectvely, the "Investrment
Advisary Agreements”), Under the Inmvestment Advisory Agreements, G5 Singapore and Yarta proveds the Sub-Trust
‘with continuous professional mvestmant advice, and effects and manages all transactions on behalf of the Sub-Trust
As compensabon for services rendered under the Investiment Advisory Agreements, GE Singapone and Yarma récene
a fee. G5 Singapore was removed as an Investment Advisor effective 1 April 2021

The Sub-Trust commanced operations and taurched Unit classes on the following dates:

Class of Units Commencement Dales
AUD Class 26 Septembear 2012
JPY Class (Hedged) 26 September 201
USD Class 26 Septembeer 2012
USD Ciass (Hedged) 28 March 2018

The Sub-Trust wil be terminated on 30 September 2027, unless the Manager extends the duration of the Sub-Trust at
its discretion on consultation with the Trustee and the Investment Manages.

The financial statemants are presented in AUD (Australian Dollar), the Sub-Trust's functional and presentation
currency. The Investment Manager considers that this cumency most acourately represents the economic effects of the
underlying transactions, events and conditions of the Sulbs-Trust

Investment Objective

The investment objective of the Sub-Trust, (the “Feeder Fund’) is to seek to provide Uinithalders with a long-term total
return consistng of moome and capdal gaing premarily by investing in subordmated term deblt secunbes, perpetual
subordinated debt securdies, preferred secunbes and senior debl secuntes meued in Australian Dolkars thraugh
imvestment into the Australia Enhanced Income Fund Il (the “Masier Fund”). In relation to such securities, subordinated
term debt securties, perpetual subordinated debt securities and preferred securities are collectively refermed to as"Hybnd
Securities”. Due to this investment objective, investors are subject 1o ceain umique nsks, The Sub-Trust's investments
in ather funds are Subject to the terms and conditions of the respective imvestes lund's Offenng Memarandum,

The investment obective of the Master Fund is to seek to primasnly invest s asseis (excluding cash and cash equivalents)
in a driersified porfolio consesting mamly of Hybrid Secunties and senior dett secuntes issued in Australan Doliars.
The Master Fund may invest in secunties ssued in other currencies, and also may invest in fced, variable or Boatng
rates securitias.

The investment managedss of the Master Fund and the Feeder Fund are the same

The Master Fund may engage m fransactions in Tmancial dervative mstruments as part of its general investment
poficy, including without Bmitation, total return swaps, index fulures, contracts for differences, fereward foneign currency
contracts and options.
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GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Motes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 September 2022

{a)

Investment Objective (continued)

The Master Fund rray utilize ransactions in equity index futures, bank bl fulures, government band fulures, or comman
stocks, pimarily by shoa salling, in onder to hedge certain exposures.

There can be no assurance that the Sub-Trust's irvestments will be successful or that the investment objective of the
Master Fund will be achieved or that its porblolio design, risk moniforing and hedging strategies will be successful.

The significant sceounting policres of the Master Fund and the Feeder Fund are congistent

As at 30 Septernber 2002 and 30 Septernber 2021, the Feeder Fund holds 100% of the Master Fund's net assels.
The Master Fund s a sub-fund of Goldman Sachs Instdutional Funds ple (the "Company”), an investment company
with variable capital incorporated with lamited liability in lreland with registered number 307105 and egtablished as an
umbrella fund with segregated Eability between sub-funds.

The Feeder Fund invests into the Master Fund. Total subscriptions and redemptions made by the Feeder Fund into the
Master Fund during the year ended 30 Septermber 2022 were AUD 453,520,781 and AUD T44 335 824, respectively.
As at 30 September 2022, there were no capital commitment obligations and the Sub-Trust had ALID 11,248,815 due
to the Master Fund for unsettled purchases and AUD 2 058 451 due from the Master Fund for unsettied sales. Total
subscriptions and redemptions made by the Feseder Fund into the Master Fund during the year ended 30 September
2021 were ALID 517,008,274 and AUD 772,475,205, respectively. As at 30 September 2021, there were no capital
comenitrmant cbligations. and the Sub-Trust had AUD 8 488,774 due to the Master Fund for unsettled purchases and
ALD 8,332,047 due from the Master Fund for unsettled sales

The Feeder Fund invests into the Master Fund by purchasing the Master Fund's redeematie paricipating shares.
The Master Fund allews redernptions of these shares on any business day.

Movements in the fair value of the Master Fund's portfclio and corresponding movernents in the fair value of the Master
Fund may expose the Feeder Fund to a loss.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policias

Financial Statements

Basis of Preparabon of Financial Stalemaents

The preparation of the financial statements is in accordance with International Financial Reparting Standards (IFRST).
The financial staternents have been prepared under the historical cost corvention as madified by the revaluation of
financial assets and kabities (incleding deriative nstrurments) at fair value through profit or loss, The preparation of

thee financial staternents requires management to make certain estirmates and assurrptions that may aflect the amounts
repored in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

I, MNew standards, amendments and interpretations effective for annual pericds beginning on or after 1
January 2021 and were effective or applicable to the Sub-Trust

There are no new standards, interpretations or amendments to existing standards that are not yet effective that would
be expected to have a significant impact on the Sub-Trust

i New standards, amendments and interpretations issued but are not yet effective and have not bean
early adopted by the Sub-Trust

;Ihcrgr ane no new standards, amendments and interpretations to exsting standards that have been adopted by the
b-Trrust
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GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Motes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 September 2022

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continuad)
B} Investment Transactions, Related investment income and Operating Expenses

The Sub-Trust records @S investment transactions on a trade dale bass Realzed gains and losses are based on
the First In First Out ("FIFQ) methed. Dividend income and dividend expense are recorded on the ex-dividend date
and mterest and interest expense are accrued over the life of the investment. Overdraft expenses which are accrued
as incurred, if any, are included in interest expense. interest from financial assets at fair value through peefit or loss
includes accretion of market discount, onginal issue discounts and amotization of premiurms and = recorded into
incorme over the Be of the underdying imvestroent. Interest from financial assels at fair value through profit or loss
and dividend income are recognized and presented on a gross basis before withhoiding tax, if any, in the Statements
of Comprehensive Income. Interest income includes interest from cash and cash equivalents. Reimbursement of
expenses is represanted in the Statements of Comprehensive Income, if any.

Operating expenses are recognized on an accrual basis.
Transaction costs, when incurred, are recognized in the Statements of Comprehensive Income.

A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so that voting or simelar rights are not the dominant factor in
daciding who controls the enbty, such as when any voling nghts relate to administrative tasks only and the relevant
activities are directed by means of confractual arrangements. A structured entity often has some or all of the foliowsng
features or attributes; (a) restricted actwvities, (b) a narrow and well-defined cbjective, such as to provide investment
oppofuniies for investons by passing on nisks and rewarnds associaled with the assets of the struchered entity to
imvestons, (o) insufficient equity to permit the structured entity to finance &s activibes without subordinated financial
support and (d) financing = the form of multiple contractually linked instruments to mwestors that create concentrations
of credit or other risks (tranches).

The Master Fund finances thew operations by issuing redeemable shares which are puttable at the holder's opbon and
entities the holder to & proportional stake in the respective Sub-Trust's net assets The Sub-Trust holds redeemalbie
shares in its Master Fund.

The Sub-Trust's maximum exposure to loss from its interests in the Master Fund is equal to the total fair value of its
imvesiments in the Master Fund,

Onee the Sub-Trust has disposed of its shares in the Master Fund the Sub-Trust ceases to be exposad to any risk from
that Master Fund

As at 30 September 2022 and 30 Septembar 2021, the net asset value of the Master Fund was AUD 710,205,207 and
ALID 050,368, 724, respectively,

ic) Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss
i Classifficaton

The Sub-Trust classifes its investments based on both the Sub-Trust's business model for managing those financial
assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. The portfolio of inancial assets is managed
and performance is evaleated on a fair value basis The Sub-Trust s pimarily focused on fair value information and
uses that information to assess the assels’ performance and ba make decisions. The Sub-Trust has not taken the opton
to revocably designate any equity securities as fair value through other comprehensive mcome. The contractual cash
flows of the Sub-Trust's debt securities are solely princigal and interest, however, these securities are neither held
for the purpose of collecting contractual cash fliows nor held both for collecting contractual cash flows and for sale.
The coflection of contractual cash flows is only incidental to achieving the Sub-Trust's business model's objective.
Conseguently, all nvestments are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

W Recognition and Derecogmiion
The Sub-Trust recognizes financial assets and fmancial kabilities on the date it becomes party to the contractual
provisions of the investment. Purchases and sakes of financial assets and financial liabd&ies are recognized using trade

date accounting From trade date, any gains and losses ansing from changes in fair value of the financial assets or
financial kabilties are racorded in the Statements of Comprehensive Income.
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GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Motes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 September 2022

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continuad)
=) Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (continued)
W Recogmibien and Derécogmibon (conlinuéd)

Financial assels are derecognized when the rights to receive cash lows from the investments have expired or the Sub-
Trust has transfemed substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

iw Fawr Vailue Measurement Principles

Under IFRS 9, classification and measurernent of debt assets will be driven by the entity’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. A debt instrument is measured
at amorbized cost if the objectve of the business mode & to hold the financials asset for the coBection of the contractual
cash flows and the contractual cash flows under the instrement solely represents payments of principal and interest
{"SPPIT.

A debt instrument is measured at fair value through comprehensve mcome if the cbjective of the business model is
to hold the financial asset both to collect confractual cash flows from SPRI and to sell. All other debt instruments. must
be recogrized at fair value through prolé o loss. An entity may however, at inital recogniten, wevecably designate
a financial asset as measured at fair value through profd or loss # doing so eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement of recognilion inconsislency.

Dermatve and equity instruments are measured af far value through profit of koss unless, for equity mstruments not
hedd for trading, an irevocable cplion i taken to measure at fair value through obher comprehensive income.

Under IFRS 9 the Sub-Trust's investment portfolio continues to be initially recorded at their ransaction pace and then
mgasuned al fair value subsequent 1o initial recognition. Gaing and losses ansng from changes in the fair value of the
“financial assats or financial liabiities at fair value through profit or loss’ category are presented in the Statements of
Comprehensive Income in the period in which they arise.

Financial assets classified as receivables are camied at amortized cost, if any. Financial liabilities, cther than those
at far value through profit or loss, are measured at amortized cost Financial liabilties ansing from redeemable Units
isswad by the Sub-Trust are carried at the redernption amount representing the Unitholders' right to a residual amount
of the Sub-Trust's Net Assets Attnbutable to Holders of Redesmable Particpating nits (et Assets”)

The fair valse of all secunties and defivatives s determined according to the fallowing policies

(W) Debl Secunlies
Dbt securities, comprsing corparate debt, are valued on the basis of dealer supplied quotations or by using a third

party pricing service. \When a dabt securty has been identified as being in default the interest accrual on the defaulted
secunty may be stopped and, upon confirmation from relevant parties, the amount receivable may be written off.

(w2} Exchange Listed Assels and Liabities

The fair value of exchange traded financial investments, comprising commeon stock and short-term investments, is
based upon quoted market prices at the pericd end date without any deduction for estimated future transachon costs.

(i3 Maoney Marke! (nvesiments

Money market investrants are valued at fair value based on amontized cost, which approximates. fair value,

(i) Shareg in Collective Investmen! Schames

The fair value of investrments in open-ended imestment funds, incleding collective investmant schemes, is based
upan the official published MNet Asset Value ("NAVT) per share as supplied by the administrative agent of the funds in
accordance with valuation policy of applcable funds as outlined in the respective Offering Memaorandum.
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GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Motes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 September 2022

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continuad)

=) Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (continued)
i Fawr Wakee Médsurarmen! Prindiphes feonimusd)
(i5)  Derivalives

A derivative s an instrument whose fair value s derved from an enderying instrument, index relerence rate of a
combination of these factors. Dersvative instruments may be privately negotiated contracts which are often referred to
a% over the counter (FOTCT) denvatives or they may be listed and traded on an exchange, Dervative contracts may
imcolve future commitments to purchase or sell financal mstruments or commodities at specified terms on a specified
date, or to exchange interest payment streams or currencies based on a notional or contractual amount

Derivative contracts ane stated at fair value and recognized as financial assets and financial liabilities on the Statements
of Financial Position. Gains and losses resulting from the change in the fair value are reflected on the Statements of
Comprehensive Income as a component of change in unrealized gaini{loss). Realized gains or losses are recorded on
terrmnation of fram penodic cash fow payments

(wha) Forward Foreign Currency Cenbracls

In @ foreard foreign currency contract, the Sub-Trust agrees to receve or deliver a fived quantity of one curtency for
ancther, at a pre-determined price at a future date. Purchases and sales of forsard foreign currency conftracts having
the same notional value, settlerment date, countenparty and right to settle net are genaerally offset (which result in a net
foreign cumency position of zero with the counterparty) and any realized gains or losses are recognized on trade date.

Forward foreign currency contracts are valued at mid by third party pricing service providers.

[0 AN Securities and Denvalives

If a quoted market price is not available from a third party pricing service or a dealer, or a quotation is beliewed
to be matenally inaccurate, the fair value of the investment is determined by using valuation techniques, Valuaton
techniques include the use of recent market iransactions, reference to the current fair value of another investment that
1% substantzally the same, discounted cash flow analyses or any other lechniques that provides a reliable esbmate af
prices obtained in actual market transactions.

Such securities and dervatives shall be valued at their probable realization value as determined by a Valuer. The Valuer
during the years ended 30 September 2022 and 30 September 2021 was Goldman Sachs & Co. LLC and the valuation
function was perfarmed by Goldman Sachs Assat Management Division Contrallers (AMD Contrallers)

The investments have been valued in accordance with generally acceplted accounting principles that require the use
of certain estimates and assumptions. Although these estimates and assumptions are based on the best available
inforrration, actual results could be matenally diffierent frorm these esbimates.

There were no securnites where the Valuer was used to deterrrine fair value during the years ended 30 September 2022
and 30 Septermber 2021

v Transfers behween lavels of the fair value hierarchy

Transfers beteasen levels of the fair value hierarchy, if any, are deemed to have otcurmed at the beginning of the
repading period.

{d) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents (short term, highly liquid investments that are readdy convertde 1o known amounts of cash

and which are subject to an insignificant nsk of changes i value), including time deposits and certificates of deposit,
are valued at amodtized cost, which approximates. fair value,

Cerilicates of deposit and time deposits are reclassified from financial assets at fair vale through profit or loss to cash
and cash equivalents as they are short term, highly liquid, readily comvertible to known amounts of cash and subject to
an insignificant rsk of changes in value.
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GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Heotes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 Saptember 2022

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {continued)
{d} Cash and Cash Equivalents (continued)
Total Cash

Cash and Cash
Cash Equivalents Equivalents

o AUD AUD AUD
30-Sep-2022 19,0854 27,358 436 27,387 500
30-Sep-2021 57522 M4.21335T 24270879

(e} Due fromito Brokers

Due fromito brokers conasts primariy of cash collateral (for denvatve confracts) and maegin amounts recernable from/
payable to the Sub-Trust's clearing brokers and vanous counterpartes. Collateral amounts due fromito broker balances
are vakmed at cost The amounts receivable from and payable to brokers represents cash settied in the Sub-Trust's
broker accounts. These balances are related to cash hedd as collateral or margin on swaps and futures with clearing
counterpartes, futures mangin cash receivable/payable to the Sub-Trusts futures cleaning menchants, and centrally
cleared swaps margin cash recenvable/payable 1o the Sub-Trust's centrally eleared swaps cleanng marchants.

These amounts are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost The Sub-Trust's
due from brokers balances are subject to the expected credt loss model withen IFRS 9. Mo balances are considered
impaired and no amounts have been written off in the period

Collateral amaownts and margin amaunts included in due fromto brokers are disclosed o the Statements of Financial
Position a% at 30 Septemnber 2022 and 30 Seplember 2021, respectively.

in Farelgn Curmency Translation

Trarsachons in foreign curmencies are translated at the foreign currency exchange rate in effect at the date of the
transaction. Assets and liabilties of the Sub-Trust dencminated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency of the Sub-Trust at the lorelgn currency exchange rate in effect al the panod end date

Fareign currency exchange differences arsing on transiation and realized gains and losses on disposals or setfemeants
of assets and liabilities are recognized in the Statements of Comprehensie Income. Foreign currency exchange gains
of losses relating 1o investmants A fair value through profit or lose and all other foreign currency exchange gams of
losses relabng to monetary items, including cash, are reflected in the net realized gain'(loss) on investments or net
change in unrealzed gainfloss) on investments in the Statements of Comprehensive Income.

i) Redeemable Units
All redeemable participating Units issued by the Sub-Trust provides the Unitholders with the right to redeam for cash at
the value proporbonate to the Unitholder's share in the Sub-Trust's net assets on the redemption date. In accordance
with |AS 32 “Financial Instrurments; Presentation”, such Units have been classified as a financial kability at the value of

the redemption amount in the Staterments of Financial Position, The Sub-Trust is contraciually obliged to redsem Lnits
in accordance with the Offering Memorandum.

{h} Distributions Payable fo Holders of Redeemable Units

Distributions/Dividends payable on the redeemable participating Units are recognized in the Statements of
Camprahansive Income as Finance Costs

4, Financial Aseets and Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

The three levels af the fair walue herarchy under the amendment to IFRS 13 “Far Valse Measurement” are descnbed
bl

Lewel 1 — Unadjusted quoted prces in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for identical,
unrestricted assets or iabities,
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Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (continued)

Level 2 - Quoted prces in markets that are not actve or financial instrurments for which significant inputs ane obsenvable
{including but nat limited to quated prices for similar securities, infterest rates, foreign exchange rates, volalility and credit
spreads), ether ditectly of indirectly. Thes may indude the Valuers assemplions in determining fair value measuremant;

Level 3 = Prices or valuations that require significant unobservable inputs (including the Valuer's assumphons i
detarmining fair vahee measurement).

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the fair value measurement is categorized in &5 entirety shall be
determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety. For
this purpose, the significance of an input i5 assessed aganst the fair value measurement in its entirety. if a fair
value measurement uses observable inputs that require significant adjustment based on unobservable inputs, that
measurement i a Level 3 measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input to the fair value measurement
in its entirely requires judgment, considering factors specific to the asset or liability.

As at 30 Septernber 2022 and 30 September 2021, the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of the Sub.
Trust contain investrments in undedying funds that have been Fair valued in accordance with the policies set out above,
The shares of the underlying funds are not publicly traded; redemgtions can only be made by the Sub-Trust on the
redemption dates and are subject to the reguired notice penods specified in the Offering Memorandum. As a result, the
carrying value of undedying funds may not be indicative of the value ullimately realzed on redemption

The fair value of the investments in the underlying funds is primarily based on the latest available redemption price
as reported by the adrninistrator of the undedying funds. The Sub-Trest may make adjustrments to the wvalue based on
consxderations such as, bquidity of the Sub-Trust's hokding in the underlying funds or their undedying investments, the
value date of the NAV provided and any restrictions on redemplions.

The following tables show linancial assets and financial liablities recognized at fair value, analyzed betwesan the three
lervels descrbed previoushy.

Financial Assels measured af falr value
2)-Bep2022
Fair value measurement at 30-Sep-2022
Level 1AUD  _ Level 2AUD Lewel 3 ALID Todal AUD

Financial assels at fair value through proft or loss

Investment Fund 710,205,307 -_— _— 710,205,307

Forward Foreign Cumency Contracts — 24,9348 547 — 24,938,947

Todal o s30T T4 8 50T = TISTEIM
Fimancial Liabilities measured at fair valua
0 -Sep-2022

Fair value measurement al 30-Sep-2022
_ _ Lenved 1 AUD Lewvel 2 ALD Lewvel 3 AUD Todnl AUD

Financial Eabdies ab fair value threugh profil or less

Forward Foreign Cumency Contracts = 8214318 = 8214, 318

Tedal — M4 318 — 214 318
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Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (continued)

Financial Assels measured af falr value
0-Sep-2021
Fair value measurement al 30-Sep-2021
Leved 1 ALID Level 2AUD  _ Level 3ALUD Tofad ALID

Financial assels al Tair value (hrough proil of 1oss

Investmant Fund S0, 368 724 - - S0 368,724

Forward Foreign Cumency Contracts — 8431035 — B421.035
— T — R EriNE] =
Financial Liabilities moeasured &t Talr value
0-Sep-2021

Fair value measurement at 20-Sep-2021
_ Lenvel 1.AUD Lewel 2 ALIO Level 3ALUD Totad ALID

Financial kabalies al far value hreugh profl of 16es

Forward Foreign Cumency Conbracls - 2376974 - 2376074

Total = IaTemvd _— —FATEAT4

Dwring the years anded 30 September 2022 and 30 September 2021, there were no transfers betesen Level 1, Leval 2
and Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy for inancial assats and financial liabilities which were recorded at fair value.

There were no securities leveled at Level 3 at 30 September 2022 and 30 September 2021

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities not carmed at fair value but for which fair value is disclosed

Cash and cash equivalents and bank overdraft, if any, are classified as Leved 1. All other assets and kabiliies nat
measured at fair value but for which fair value is disclosed are classilied as Level 2. Refer to the Statements of Financial
Position for a breakdown of assets and labilibes and 1o Mote 3(c) for a description of the valuation technigues,

The puttable value of redeemable participating Units classified as a financial liabidty is calcutated based on the net
difference bebtween total assets and all other [mbiktes of the Sub-Trust in accordance with the Sub-Trust's Offermg
Memorandum. These Units are not traded on an actve market A demand feature is attached to these Units, as they
ane redeemable at the holders’ option and can be put back to the Sub-Trust at any dealing date for cash aqual to
proportionate Units of the Sub-Tnust's NAY attributable to the Units class. The fair value is based on the amount payable
on dermand, discounted frorm the first date that the amaunt could be required to be paid. The impact of discounting
in this instance is not material. As such, Level 2 i deemed to be the most approprate categorization for Net Assels
Attribtable 1o holders of redeemable participating Linits,

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Dervalives

In erder to better define its contractual rights and to secure rights that will help the Sub-Trust mitigate its counterparty
gk, the Sub-Trust ray enter into an Internatonal Swaps and Dervatives Association, Ine, Master Agreement (T1SDA
Master Agreement’} or simdar agreements with #s derivative contract counterparties, An [SDA Master Agreement
i% a bilateral agreement between the Sub-Trust and a counterparty that governs OTC dervatnies, indluding forgign
exchange contracts, and typically contains, among other things, collateral posting terms and netting provisions in the
event of a default andlor termination event. The provisions of the [SDA Master Agreerment typically permit a single
net payment in the event of a defautt (close-cut netting) or similar event. incleding the bankruptey or insolvency of the

Counterpaty.

Collateral and margin requrements differ between exchange traded derivatives and OTC dervatives Margin
requirements are established by the broker of cleanng house for exchange-traded and cenfraly cleared deriatves
{financial futures contracts, options and centrally cheared swaps) pursuant to the goveming agreements for those
instrument types. Brokers can ask for margin in excess of the minimum in certain crcurmstances. Collateral terms ane
contract-specific for OTC deneatives (foreign curmency exchange confracts, opions and certain swaps). For derivatives
traded under an ISDA Master Agreament, the collateral requirements are typically caleulated by netting the mark-to-
marked amount for each transaction undes such agreement and comparnng that amount to the value of any collateral
currently pledged by the Sub-Trust and the counterparty, Additionally, the Sub-Trust may be required to post additional
collateral to the counterparty in the form of indial margin, the terms of which would be outlined in the confirmation of
the OTC transaction.
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Offsatting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities [continued)
Denvalives (continusd)

Far financial rporting purposes, cash collaleral that has been pledged to cover obligations of the Sub-Trust and cash
collateral received from the counterparty, if any, i reported sapamtely on the Statements of Financial Position as due
from/due to broker. Non-cash collateral pledged by the Sub-Trust, if any, is noted in the Schedubes of Investments.
Generally, the amount of collateral due from of to 8 counterparty must exceed a minimum ransfer amount threshold
befare a ransfer & required to be made. To the extent amounts due to the Sub-Trust from its counterparties are not
fully collateralized, contractually or othersise, the Sub-Trust bears the risk of loss from counterpanty nonperformance.
The Sub-Trust atternpts to mitigate counterparty risk by anly entering into agreements with counterparties that it beleves
to be of good standing and by monitoring the financial stability of those counterparties.

Additionally, the netting of assets and liabilties and the offsetting of collateral pledged or received are based on
contractual netting/set-off provisions in the |5DA Master Agreement or similar agreements. However, in the event of a
default or inschvency of a counterparty, 8 court could determine that such rights are not enforceable due to restrictions
of prohibitions againgt the right of setoff that may be imposed due to a particular junsdiction’s bankruptey or insohiency
lares

The fallowing table sat forth the Sub-Trust's net exposure for OTC demvative insiruments that are subject to enforceable
masher nefting arrangements o similar agreements at the years ended 30 September 2022 and 30 September 2021

0-Sep-2022
Dairwativie A e Dy viativin Liabiltses™
Het Derivalive Colaberal
Asssts i Hed
F o da Feawards {Liabsilitios) Pladged™ Arrunt™
Auntraia & Hew Teslard Banking
o Lid RERE ] LR E] [IL- Nk 1] 350000 TAA |
il Parban 58 1813 - g - g
ik FUA, L2 1,869 i pig
it Fane meraional - [21.401] (29,807} - I |
HEEC Bank FLC 19,845 1104, 53] 122,943) - {22,188
Morgan Haniey 11687 AW SRS BT 2121613 {0 R0.000) LERLETE
Ry Bk of Canada 19,381 (78,385 {85,008y - [t
Py B of Sootigng |, B 1 ana) 150a
Searelard Chiartersd Bank LR ] [FEEET) #513,159 7, S0y 1113559
UBS Al A8 Ere ] (%5018 = LG}
rirpe: Barding Comoranon 44,080 {104, 2509 {53979 - (R
Tadal 4974 98T [EFITEITT] 18,724 [E] 118 2031 843
30-Sap-Z2021
Ciorivative Axpets™ Dwrivative Liabilitios™
Wt Darivative  Collatival
Antelx (R tvad) Mot
c: parky ¥ Formards (Liahilftire] Fledgad™ & 3l
dmbrai & Bidey Toaland Eunking
G Ll 130,843 - Ll 5] - LFUT L]
Brolsys Bank FLC 4,190,851 4,110 951 (2723 E07) BET 144
ERiP Partan 58 - [# R [F REET - (¢ REET
i PUA, - |1 BT 2 [0 s BT 2} 10300000 [E ]
PG Bark PLC TR ] kT = L
JPadzrgan Crans & Co LT = 85T - BET
Morgan Raniey - [16.385) [RLEILY - [RLETLY
eyl B of Canada 4100 B - 4,000 DS (3720000 B2 05
Pyl B of Soofigng FLE T (OS2 N82) [V OT o) 10E0000 TR}
Srabw Sorest Bank & That Ca m4n [EH 4TT) [P 88| - [ 088 )
LI A 10,350 LI.TH] (6810} = {6090}
Tatal AT 38 [EEECUEET] BMA6T  (HITIROT) 670244

7 Gross amounts avadable for ofsed bad nol netled Inihe Slatements of Financial Pogfons.
el amiound represenis i Nl smounl s () from countiparty in the svent of o defsull Baned on B contraciusl 598-07 righls under e Bpreemant. Med
wm e BThadEs BTy eRr-Doil e iz s
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6. Taxation

There are at present no corporabion, income, capial gains, profits or other taxes in the Cayman |stands which would
apply to the profits in respect of the Sub-Trust Nor ane there gift, estale or inhertance taxes in the Cayman |slands.
Thee Trustes has applied for and has recened from the Governor-n-Cabinet of the Cayman [slands an underaking i
accordance with Section 81 of the Trusts Law (as amended) that for a period of 50 years from the date of the creation
of the Master Trust na law which is thereafter enacted in the Cayman Islands imposing any taxes or duty to be leveed
of INCOME of on capital assels, gans of appreciation of any tax in the nature of estate duly or inherdance tax shal
apply to the property compresed m or any intome ansng under the Sub-Trust of to the Trustee or Unitholders thereaf
in respect of any such property o incorme, provided that a Unitholder who is at any time resadent or domicied in the
Cayman Islands (other than any object of a charitable trust or power or an exempted or ardinary nen-resident company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands) shall be iable in and in respect of such tirne to all and any tax and duty as if
such undertaking had never been given and nothing in the relevant section of the Trusts Law shall be consirued as
exernpting any such person resident or domiciled in the [skands from any law mposing any tax or duty referred to in
the Trusts Law

The Sub-Trust invests in securties issued by entities which are domiciled in countries ather than the Cayman |Slands,
Many of these fareign countries have tax laws which indicate that capital gains taxes may be applicable to non ressdents,
such as the Sub-Trust. Typically, these capital gains taxes are required to be determined on a selff assessment basis
and, therefore, such taxes may not be deducted by the Sub-Trust's brokers on a “withholding™ basis.

In accordance with |AS 12 - Income Taxes, the Sub-Trust is required to recagnize a tax liability when it is probable that
the tax laws of foreign countries require a tax Babilty to be assessed on the Sub-Trusts capital gains sourced from
such forelgn country, assuming the relevant taxang authorities have full knewledge of all the kacts and crcumstances

The tax liability is then measured at the amount expected to be paid to the relevant taxation authorities using the tax
laws and rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting pericd. There s sometimes
uncartinty about the way enacted tax bw s appbed 1o offshore imvestment funds, This creates uncertaunty about
whether or not a tax liabddy will ulimately be paid by the Sub-Trust Therefore when measuring any uncertain tax
lmbilities management considers all of the relevant facts and circumstances available at the time which could influence
the Ekelihocd of payment, including any formal or informal practices. of the relevant tax authorities.

Far the years ended 30 September 2022 and 20 Septernber 2021, the Sub-Trust has measwed uncertain tax liabilities
and related interest and penalties with respect to foresgn capital gains taxes at nd. While this represents management's
best estirmate there rermaing a nsk that foreign tax authortes will attenpt bo collect taxes on Capital gains earned by the
Sub-Trust. This could happen without giving any preor warming, possibly on a retrospective bagis, and could resultin a
substantial loss to the Sub-Trust

T. Significant Agreements and Related Parties
(a) Investment Management and Advisors Foe

Under the terms of the Management Agreement, the Investrment Manager receives, from the assets of the Sub-Trust,
a quarterly fee accruing daily and calculated and paid on a quaredy bass in arrears equal to 0.80% of the Sub-
Trust's average NAV, determined as of the last business day of the applicable quarter end, adjusted to reflect any
subscriptions, redemptons and distributions duning the applicable calendar quarder. |n addition, subject to the consent
of the Investment Manager, the Trustee reserves the right to waive fees, or impese greater or lesser fees on, or to
rebrate all or a portion of any of the investment management fees to any Unitholder, including affiliates of the Investment
Manager, as may be agreed to by the Investment Manager, Trustee and the applicable Unitholder, The imvestrnent
managerment fees are disclosed in the Statements of Comprehensae Incarme for the years ended 30 Seplermber 2002
and 30 September 2021, respectively.

The Sub-Trust invests in an undedying fund which alse may pay imeestment management fees to the investment
advisors who ane related parties to Yarra and GS Singapore. The Sub-Trust indirectly bears the expenses paid by the
underlying fund. The table below sets forth the fee rate for the underlying fund and is as follows:

Anrual Fae
Underlying Fund Rata %
Australia Enhanced Income Fund I, Class 1O (Ace), ALD shares nil
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T Significant Agreements and Related Parties (continued)
B} Manager Fee

Mitsubshi LF J lrvestor Services & Banking (Luxembourg) SA, ("MIBL" of the "Manages”) senes as the Manager of
the Sub-Trust

MIEL has been authorized as a commescial bank and is reguliated in the Grand Duchy of Luxembaurg by the Commission
de Surveillance du Secteur Financier ((CSSF). 1t was intorporated in Luxembourg as a socidbé anonyme an 11 Apnl
1574 as a magority—cemed subsidiary of The Bank of Tokyo, Lid.

The Manager recenwes, from the assets of the Sub-Trust, a fee accruing daily and paid on a quarerly basis in arrears
equal to 0.05% of the Sub-Trust's average NAV, The manager fees for the years ended 30 September 2022 and 30
September 2021, are disclosed n the Statements of Comprehensive Income, respecinely.

{c) Administration and Transfer Agent Fee

Brown Brcthers Harriman & Co. ("BBH7 & the Sub-Trust's Administrator and Transfer Agent The Administrator and
Transfer Agent perorm certain day-to-day adminstratve tisks on behalf of the Sub-Trust including maintenance of the
Sub-Trust's books and records, calculation of the NAVY and payments of the Sub-Trusl's expenses.

BEH is paid solely out of the assets of the Sub-Trust including asset-based, safekeeping, transaction, servicing and
cther fees as may be agreed upon from time to time with the Investment Manager Additionally, at meonth end, the
secunties for the Sub-Trust are sagregated based on the fransaction type and a fee rate is applied. The Sub-Trust wil
pay such fees monthly in arears

Annual administration and transfer agent charges on the value of month end average net assels will be assessed at the
Sub-Trust leval basad on the following schedule,

Assets up o USD 500 million 4.0bps
Assets bebwesn USD 500 millen - WSD 1 béllion 10 bps
Asgets above USD 1 bikon 2.5bps

Th Adminisirstion and Transfer Agent less are comerned from A LD ha LESD.

The administration and transfer agent fees are declosed in the Statements of Comprehensve Income for the years
ended 30 Seplember 2022 and 30 September 2021, respectively.

g} Distribution Fee

The Manager may, from bme fo time, appoint one or more entibes as distributor (Bhe “Japanese Distibutors™ or the
“Distributors™} of the Sub-Trust in Japan.

The Japanese Distributors or Distributors receives a fee, accruing daily and paid on a quarterly basis in amears, aqual
to 0LB0% of the Sub-Trust's average MAY, adjusted to reflect any subscriptions, redemptions or distributions during the
applicable calendar quarter,

The distnbuton fees are dsclosad in the Statements of Comgrehensive Income for the years ended 30 September
2022 and 30 September 2021, respactivaly

(e} Trustee Fea

Brown Brothers Hamman Trust Company (Cayman) Limited acts a5 the Trustee for the Sub-Trust The Trustee s
responsible for the overall supervision of the Sub-Trust's assets, pursuant to the terms of the Declaration of Trust. The
Sub-Trust will pay such fees, manthly in arrears, to the Trustee equal bo D.01% of the average NAV

The trustee fees are disclosed in the Statements of Comprehensive Incame tor the years ended 30 September 2022
and 30 September 2021, respectively.
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T Significant Agreements and Related Parties (continued)
in Custodian Fee

Thie Trustes has deegated the respondibility for custody of the Sub-Trust's assets to BEH, The custadian carmes out the
usual dutes regarding custody, cash and securities deposis, without any restriction, Fees are charged on safekeepang
of securities on a monthly basis. At manth end, the securities for the Sub-Trust are segregated based on the country of
ongin. The LSD equivalent fair value is dervved for each secunty and a fee rate is applied based on country of onigin

The custodian fees are disclosed in the Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years ended 30 Septamber 2022
and 30 Septernber 2001, respectivaly.

{g) Agent Company Fea

Goldman Sachs Asset Management Ca. Ltd, acts as the Agent Company in Japan of the Sub-Trust The Agent
Company receives a fee, accruing daily and paid on a quarterly basis in amears. equal to 0.03% of the Sub-Trust's
average MAY

The agent cormpany fees are disclosed in the Statements of Comprehensive Income for the years ended 30 September
2022 and 30 September 2021, respectiely.

8, Redesmable Participating Unite
Classes Issue Price Miinimasm Initial Subscriptian
ALD ALID 10 AUD 100
JPY {Hedged) JPY 10,000 JPY 10,000
usD usD 10 USD 100
USD [Hedgad) UsD 10 USD 100

Units wall be effered for sale on each business day at the NAY per Unit of the applicable class

Units are redeamable at the option of the Unitholder upon notice given in accordance with the terrrs of the Offerng
Memaorandum, Unigs will be redeemed at the MNAY per Unit of the applicable Class prevailing as of close of business on
the applicable Redemption Date, provided that the Investment Manager may, in its sole discreton, reduce such amount
by any expenses incurned in connection with such redemption

Units af the Master Fund are also redesmable at the option of the Unholder on demand upon notice gven in accordance
with the terms of the Offering Memarandum.

As of 30 September 2022 there are six Unithokders, two ol whach 15 a related party to the Manager. As of 30 September
2021 there are five Unitholders, ane of which is a related party to the Manages.

The follewing summarnt és the activity n the Sub-Trust's Units,

Humber of Units
Clans JPY Class USD
Class AUD {Heigedy Class USD H

Balance 10 September 2020 ERIEEsT 454,982 5,308,873 35 85T AT
Subiicriptons of mdeemabie pardapating LUnts 14426875 A2BET 5,983,508 8191100
Redemptions of redssmabie partcipatng Unies nnurr.:uar i1 800 LES1 158 r!&mqg
Balarsce 30 September 20H 57,288,904 650,048 2,775,870 30,720,163
Subscriptions of parficipating Unks (R 162750 2000008 A0
Radamption of edsemable parbsipabing Uinks 29 G 073 (320, by EEE el ox] 15 188
Balance 30 September 2022 42,000,240 521,243 E1dded 20, 17, fo

8. HAV per Unit

The consideration received or pawd for redeemable paricipating Units issued or re-purchased respectively is based on
the value of the Sub-Trust's net assets value per redeemable participating Units at the date of the transaction.
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1.

11.

MaAY per Unit (continued)

The NAVY and NAY per Unit for each Uinit class cutstand:ng for the Sub-Trust are as follows:

30-Sep-2022 30-Sep-2021
Unit Class Net Assel Value MAY Par Unit Net Assel Value MAY Par Unit

A lass AL ¥ 0.4 Al T AL 457 423.0 ALl ECEE

JPY Class {Hedged) AUD 46.972,159 JPY 8,3868.511655 AUD TO438, 504 JPY 8, 733. 38054 T

LUSD Class ALUD 58.396.654 RS0 4 6521410 AUD 65.643.208 5D 5403162

USD Class (Hedged) AUD 29840671 USD 5505020 AUD _ 417.180311  USD  5.809525

Distributions

Distributions are made at the election of the Investment Manager and the arnounts declared and paid during the years
ended 30 September 2022 and 30 Septernber 2021 are disclosed in the Staterments of Comprehensive Income when
Met Assets Atiributable Holdess of Redeemable Participating Units are classiied as a financial kability, Distributions
to Unitholders reduce the Sub-Trust's NAV per Unit without any comesponding change in the number of Lings per
Unithcdder. This results in a Unitholder's overall investment in the Sub-Trust being reduced. In addition, any distributions
paid during a period which are in excess of the Sub-Trust's accumulated net ncomai{loss) from operations results in a
portion of the distibutions. being a return of capital

Financial Investmeants and Associated Risks

The Sub-Trust's investing activities expase it io vanoes types of risks that are associated with the fnancial investments
and markets in which the underlying Master Fund invests. These rmay be both dersvative and non-derative Tinancial
imvestments. The Sub-Trust's investment portfolio is comprnsed of a sole underying fund and denvative investments
at the pericd end. The Trustee has appointed the Investment Advisors to manage the risks of the Sub-Trust The
sagnifecant types of linancial risks which the Sub-Trust IS e posed o are market nsk, liquiddy msk and eredit sk The
Offering Mermarandum provides detads of these and other types of risk some of which are additional to that informatson
provided in these financial statements

Asset allocation is detenmined by the Sub-Trust's Imvestment Advisors who manage the allocation of assets 1o achieve
the investment objective as detailed in Nole 2 Achievernent of the investment objective involves taking risks. The
Imvestment Advisors exercise judgment based on analysis, research and risk management techniques when making
imvestment decisions. Divergence from the benchrmark andior the target asset allocation and the composition of the
portfolo is monitored in accordance with the Sub-Trust's risk managerment policy.

The existence of multiple investment vehicles potentially investing in the same undedying fund, presents certain unique
rigks to investors. The Sub-Trust may be matenally affected by the aclions of anather entity investing in the same
underlying fund. For example, if another Unitholder of the underdying fund redeems some or all of its interests, the Sub.
Trist, may expenence higher pro rata operating expenses, thereby producing lower refurns. Similarly, the underhying
fund may become less diverse due to redemplions from its ather Linitholders, resulting in increasad porfolio risk
The underlying fund may restrict its vestment activities or be precheded from investing in certain instruments due to
regulatory restictons on certain of #s direct or indirect investars or othersise, which may have an adverse eflect on the
parormance of the underlying fund, and, in furn, the Sub-Trust
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1. Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)
The risk managernant policies employed in relation to the Sub-Trust are detalled below:

(a) Market Risk

The patental for changes in the i value of the Sub-Trust's investrnent portfalio is referned 1o as rmarked rsk. Commanly
used categories of market risk include currency risk, interest rate nsk and other price risk

- Culrency sk may result from exposures to changes in spat prices, forward prices and volatities of currency
rates.

. |nterest rate risk may result from exposures to changes in the level, slope and curvature of the various yield
curves, the volatility of nterest rates, mortgage prepayment speeds and credit spreads.

* Oiner price sk is the resk that the value of an investment will flucluate as a result of changes in market prces

ather than thogse ansing from currency rsk of intérest rate risk and may result from exposures 1o changes in
the: prices and volatlities of indvidual equities, equity baskets, equity indices, and commaodites.

The market risk strategy is drven by the Sulb-Trust's investment risk and retumn objectves

Market risk is managed through the applicateon of nsk budgeting principles. The Investment Advisors determine an
appropriate risk target, commondy refermed to as Tracking Error, employing a risk budgeting framework

A Market Risk Analysis Group at Goldman Sachs ("IMD MRA™) is responsible for independently monitoring, analyzing
and reporting the market risks taken by the Investment Adviscrs. IMD MRA uses a number of risk metrics to monitor the
market risks including monitorng sensitivites, and Tracking Error,

Detads of the Sub-Trest's investment portfolio at the reporting date are disclosed in the Schedules of Investments. AR
individual collective investrent schemes and derivative investrmeants are disclosed saparately.

[y Currency Risk

Each cuwmrency class of the portfolio wil seek to hedge against each relevant cumrency {with the exception of the USD
class which i1 discussed turther below). This i refermed 1o as Class Hedging, Moregver, whese a Unholder invests in
Units of a Hedged Class that are hedged into a class currency other than the home currency of the Unithalder's cwn
jurisdiction, such Unitholder will be exposed to the significant risk that the class cumrency will depreciate against such
home currency.

Hedging with the relevant class currency is not necessarily complete and each cumency class may be subject to
currency exchange fluctuabion of the cumency in which the Units have been issued.

The assets of the Sub-Trust are denominated in AUD, the value of the USD Class will fluctuate in Ene with the USO/
ALID exchange rate regardiess of undedlying performance

In principle, each class of the Sub-Trust is hedged to the currency of that class with the excepton of the USD class.
Hedging gains and losses, with respect to hedging activity undertaken by the Sub-Trust on behalf of a Currency Class,
ang allocated solely to that respecinig currency class,

The Sub-Trust may invest in financial investments and enter into ransactsons denominated in currencies other than
their functional currency. Consequently, the Sub-Trust may be exposed to risks that the exchange rate of their funclional
cufrency relative to other foreign currencies may change in a manner that has an adverse effect on the value of that
portion of the Sub-Trust's assals or liabfities denominated i cumencies other than ther functional currency. Please
refer to the Schedules of Investments of the Sub-Trust which detads investments in currencies other than its functional
currency. At 30 Septermber 2022 and 30 Septernber 2021, substantally all non-AUD investments were hedged o the
AUD. This is referred to as Porfolio Hedgeng

When an investor imvests into a Unet class which is in a different currency to the base currency of the Sub-Trust inwhich
it invests, the currency risk of the imcestor will be diferent to the currency nsk of the Sub-Trust

ki)
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11. Financial Investments and Associated Risks {continued)
@) Market Risk [continued)
(] Currancy Risk (continued)
The Sub-Trust had no significant cumency nsk exposure at 20 September 2022 and 30 September 2021

Akhough not affecting total Sub-Trust net income, the value of the LESD class will fluctuate in line with LISDIALID
exchange rate. Therefore, a 15% appreciation/depreciation in the LISD will impact the net assats of the respective USD
class by +- 15% and will not have any impact on the other classes

The Sub-Trust had fallowing currency concentrations, including hedging, greater than +/-5% of MAV as at 30 Septembar

2022 and 30 September 2021
Cuirency Currency
concentralion concentration
Cumrancy 30-Sop-2022  30-Sep-2021
usD S0.67% £1.10%
JPY B.4TH 65T,

For the Master Fund, there were no currency concentrations, including hedging, greater than +1.5% of NAV at 30
September 2022 and 30 Seplember 2021

(i) Intarest Rate Risk

The Sub-Trust may invest in feed income securities through #s indirect exposwre to the investments of the Master
Fund, Any change 1o the relevant interest rates for parbcular securities may result in the Investment Advisors baing
unable 1o secure Similar reterms on the expiry of the contracts of the sale of secunties. In addition, changes 1o prevailng
intarest rates of changes in expectatons of future rates may resull in an Ncrease of decrease in the value of the
secunties held. In general, ifinterest rates rise, the value of the fwed mcome securties will decline. A declne in interest
rates will in general have the opposite effect

The Sub-Trust may invest n instruments in desired currencies at fived, floating and zero rates of interest through s
indirect exposure to the investrment of the Master Fund

The Sub-Trust had no significant direct interest rate risk exposure at 30 September 2022 and 30 Seplember 2021,
however the Sub-Trust did have indrect interest rabe exposure via the Master Fund's investment portfalio.

The infterest rate prodile of the financial assets and habilites of the Sub-Trust s as follows:

AL 30-Sep.2022
Han Itsresl
Up to 1 year 1- 5 years v 5 yoars Baaring Tk al

Assels
GCash and cash egquivalenis 7 368 436 - - 15,064 27,387 500
Financial assets held for radng andior

hedging - - = TI5144.394 T35, 144 294
Recaivable Tof invesimants sobd - - - 2,068,387 2,068 387
Cther assels - - - 20582137 2052737
Total Assels IT 365 436 - - TI9FE5A49%  TEHES3928
Liabllities
Financial kabiities held for trading andfor

hedging - - - 9,214 318 9,214,318
Payable for investments purchosed - - - 11,245,818 11,248,819
Otfher linbilities - - - 19,543,736 19,843,735
Total Liabilites excluding nel assels

aliributable to Unitholdars - - - A0, 307 875 40,307 BTS

28
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1. Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)
{a) Market Risk [continued)
(4} Interest Rate Risk (continued)

AL 0. Bep-2021
Han Inferest
U Lo 1 year 1- 5years Dl § ybars Baaring Tatal

Assels
Cash and cash equivalanis 24,213,357 - - 57,522 24,270,579
Financial assets held for trading andior

hedging - - = 9SA.TES.TE0  958.789.760
Recevable for investments sobd - - - 6336073 6,335,073
Other assels - - - 10,554 471 10,554 471
Total Assels 24,213,357 - - 1,05, TITELE  1,038,951,183
Liabllies
Financial linbilties held for trading and.for

hEdging = = = 2,376,574 2,376,974
Payable for imestments purchased = = - B 486,774 8488774
Other liabilities - - - 18,421, 747 18,421,787

Todal Liabilities excluding nel assels
aliributable to Wnitholders = =

28,265,535 0,263,533

The interest profile of the financial assets and liabilities of the Master Fund is as follows:

At 30-Sep-2022
Haon Interast
Uptodyear 1- Sysars Ower § years Bearing Todal
Assels
Financial assets held for trading andior
hedging 304,178,101 68,258,523 76,805,562 30,881,517 BE0,265.103
Total Asseds 504,179,101 B8, 758 933 TE 805,563 30,581, 87 BRO, 265,103
At 30-Sep-2021
Mo Inlerest
Uptoiyear  1- Sysars  Ower § years Bearing Total
Assels
Financial assets held for trading andior
hedging 714,703,337 73290944 145,737 450 33,834,792 SET.S66.523
ATRLERET 145,737

(i) Other Price Risk
Cther price risk is the rsk that the value of a financial investment will fiectuate as a result of changes o market prices,

other than those ansing from currency risk or interest rate risk whether caused by factors specific to an ndvidual
irvestrment, s Esuer o any factor affecting financial imvestrments traded in the matket

As the Sub-Trust's fmancial investrments are carried at fair value with fair value changes recognized in the Statements
of Comprehensive Income, all changes in market conditions will dinectly affect Met Assets Attributable Holders of
Redeemable Participating Units

]
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11. Financial Investments and Associated Risks {continued)
@) Market Risk [continued)
(il Other Price Risk {continued)

The Sub-Trest's investments in collective investiment schemesimutual funds are based upon the NAY as suppled
by the underlying funds, in accordance with the valuation policy of the applicable fund as outlined in its Offering
Mermnorandurm, Whike it is expected thal the assats of the mutual funds will generally be valued by an independent thind
pamty administrator or other service provider, there may be Grcumstances in which certain securibes or other assets of
a mutual fund may not have a readily ascertanable market pnce. In such circumstances, the manager of the relevant
mutual fund may be required to value such securtties or instruments.

Tha fellewing analysis for the Sub-Trust is presented based on the indwect exposute to the mvestments of the underdyng

fund.
Impact on NAV for a 10% Price Movemant
30-Bap-27 I0-Saep-22 30-Sep-21 30-Sap-21
Higher Lower Highar Lovwer
Banks 1% [3.5%) AT (3T %)
Insurance 0.5% 10.5%) 0.8% (8%}
Hoteds, Mobels, Inns &

Garing 0.0% 0,0 LEL ] (0 4%
Funds. 0% (0.4%%) 3% 1005 %)
Financials 1.5% 1.B%) 1.7% (1.7}
Cher 8% (2.8%) 29% (29%:)
Total Porifalio 9.8% (3.8%) 8% (3.8%)

[in) Limitations of Sensitivity Analysis
Some of the limitations of the sensitivity analysis tables above include:

. the analysis is based on historical data and cannot take account of the fact that future market price movements,
correlations between markets and levels of market bguidity may bear no refation to historical patterns;

. the analysis is a relative estimate of risk rather than a precise and accurate number,

. the analyss represents a hypathetcal outcome and s not intended to be predictive; and

. future market conditions could vary significantly from those experienced in the past

(b}  Liguidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the msk that the Sub-Trust will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financeal
lmabdities that are settled by delvering cash or ancther linancial asset Among other things liquidity could be impaired by
an inabilty to access secured andfor unsecured sources of financing, an inability to sell assets or unforeseen outliows
of cash of collateral or viclations of counterpasty of prime broker terms oF covenants. This situabon may arise due
to circumstances outside of the Sub-Trust's control, such as a general marked disruption or an operational problem
affecting the Sub-Trust or thind parties. Also, the abilty to sell assets may be imgaired if other market participants ane
seeking to sell similar assets at the same time.

The Sub-Trust's financial assets and financial liakilities include investrments in denvative contracts traded over the
counter, whizh are not fraded in an arganized public mamket and which may be illiguid and in investrments which may
represent a signilicant percentage of issue size. As a result, the Sub-Trust may not be able fo liquidate quickly some
of thess imvestiments at an amount close to fair value in order to meet requirements, of 1o respond 1o specdic events
siech as detenioration in the creditwarthiness of any particular issuer. The forced liquidation of investment posthons may
cause financial losses.

The Sub-Trust's iwestments include coliective westment schemes, which may impose greater restricions on
redemptions than those imposed by the Sub.Trust This may include offerings less frequent redempbion dates than ane
offered by the Sub-Trust to its Unitholders,

The Sub-Trust provedes for the subscnpbon and redempbon of Units and it s therefore exposed to the liguidity nsk
associated with Unitholder redemptions in accordance with the terms n the Offering Memorandum. The Sub-Trust's
COfferng Memorandum provides for the daily subscription and redemphion of Units.

a0
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1. Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)
B} Liguidity Risk [continued)

Thie Sub-Trust is managed to ncude bguid investments sufficient to meel nofmal bguidity needs although substantal
redemptions of Units in the Sub-Trust could require the Sub-Trest to liquidate is imvestments more apidly than
othersise desirable in order to raise cash for the redemptions. These factors could adversely affect the value of the
Units redeemed and the valuation of the Units that remain outstanding and the liquidity of the Sub-Trust's remaining
assets if more liguid assets have been sold to meet redemptions.

The Trustee may Emit or suspend redemptions in certain circumstances, including, but not lirited to, when the
deferminaton of NAY has been suspended, where the disposal of part or all of the Sub-Trust's assets to meet
such redemplion requests would, in the reasonable cpinion of the Trustee, be prejudicial to Unithalders, or under
ectracedinary circumstances beyond the control of the Trustee. With respect to any redemption, having consulted with
the Investment Manager, the Trustee may reserve amounts from the redemgtion proceeds for any expenses, liabilities
of contingencies, even if such reserves are not required by IFRS.

As at 30 September 2022 and 30 Septermnber 2021, all liability amownts are due within three months.

As at 20 September 2027, gross inflows and gross outflows for forward foreign curency contracts were ALID
1,009,407 841 and ALID 293 870,287, respactively.

As at 30 September 2021, gross inflows and gross outflows for forward foreign cumency contracts were AUD
518,451,262 and ALUD 512,407 200, respectively.

Forward foreign currency contracts are generally sefttied net
Financing arrangements include dersative transactions.

Expiration or termination of available financing for leveraged positions, and the requirements to post collateral in respect
of changes in the fair valee of leveraged exposures or changes in advance rates or other terms and conditions of the
Sub-Trust's financing arrangements, can result in adverse effects to the Sub-Trust's access o quidty and abity to
maintain leveraged positions, and rmay cause the Sub-Trust to incur material losses. The Sub-Trust may borrow or
utilize other forms of leverage (on a secured and unsecured basis) for any purpose including, Moreasing investrment
capacily, and covenng operating expenses or for the seftlernent of transactions. However, there i$ no guaranbee that
any such arrangements for obtaining leverage will be available, or, if available, wil be available on terms and conditions
acceptable to the Sub-Trust Unfavorable economic conditions also could increase funding costs, limit access to the
capital markets of result in a decision by lenders not to extend credit to the Sub-Trust

The use of leverage also increases risk as it magnifies the effect of any wolability in fair values an the Sub-Trust's Met
Assets Aftributable Holders of Redeerable Participating Units.

Adecline in the market value of the Sub.Trust's assets may have particular adverse consequences in instances wherne
they have borrowed money on the market value of those assets. A decrease in the market value of those assets may
result in the lender (including derwvative counterparties) requinng the Sub-Trust 1o post additional collateral or sthensise
sell assets at a time when it may not be in the Sub-Trust's best interest to do sa

(=] Credit Risk

Credit rsk s the sk that one party to a financial investment will cause a financial less for the ather party by failing to
discharge an obligation

The Investment Adviscrs have adopted procedures to reduce credit risk related to its dealings with counterparties
or issuers in the Sub-Trust. Before transacting, the Imvestment Advisors or their refated parties evaluale both credit-
worthiness and reputation by conducting a credit analysis of the party, their business and reputation. The credit risk
of appioved counterparties OF Sdueis & then moanoed on an angoing bass, induding penodic reviews of hinancial
staterments and interim financial reports as needed.
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1.

4]

Financial Investments and Associated Risks {continued)
Credit Risk (continued)

In arder to reduce exposure to cradit losses, some over-the-counter dematnvg agreernents entened into by the Sub-Trust
peimit netting of ransactons arising under such agreements, excluding those with counterparties executing only spot
fareign exchange confracts. While such netting rghts do not result in an offset of reported assets and liabikties, they
do provide for the reduction of credit risk on favorable over-the-counter transactions with a single counterparty bo the
extent of the value of unfavorable over-the-counter transactions with the same counterparty upon the occurrence of an
event of default or termination event as all over-the-counter transactions with the counterparty under such agreement
are terminated and amounts owed from and amounts payable to the counterparty are sattled on a net basis.

Dbt securities are subject to the nsk of isuer’s or @ guarantor’s inabiity to meet principal and interest payments on
its abligations and are subgedt to price volatilty due to factors such as interest rate sensitivlly, marke! perception of the
creditworthiness of the issuer, and general market iquidity.

The Sub-Trust & subject to @ number of rssks relating to e inscivency, administration, bguidation or other formal
protection from crediters (Insolvency”) of the Custodian oe any sub-custedian / Trustee. These nsks include without
limitation:

i The loss of all cash held with the Custodian or sub-custedian / Trustes which is not being treated as client
mmaney both at the level of the Custodian and any sub-custodians f Trustee (“chent rmoney”)

i The loss of all cash which the Custodian o sub-custodian | Trustes has faded to treat as client money in
accordance with procedures (f any) agreed with the Sub-Trust

iii The loss of some or all of any securibes held on Sub-Trust which have not been properly segregated and so
identilied both at the level of the Custedian and any sub-custodians J Trustee ("Trust Assets™) or client money
held by of with the Custedian or sub-custodian f Trustes.

I, The loss of some of all assets dug 1o the incofmect operation of accounts by the Custodan of sub-custadan
I Trustee or due 1o the process of dentifying and transferring the relevant Trust Assets andior client money
inchuding any deducton to meet the administrative costs of an insobvency

V. Losses caused by prodonged delays in receiving transfers of balances and regaining control over the relevant
assets

An insolvency could cause severe disruption to the Sub-Trust's mvestment activity. In some circumstances, this could
ebliss the Irvestment Mangger 1o temparandy suspend the calculation of the NAVY and dealing in Unita

The cearng and depository operatons for the Sub-Trust's securiy fransactons are mainly concentrated with the
Custodian, At 30 Septernber 2022 and 30 Septernber 2021, substantially all cash and cash equivalents, balances due
from broker and investments are placed in custody with the Custodzan (with the exception of the Time Deposits which
may be hald with a third party custodian) or with the undedying broker.

At 50 Septernber 2022 and 30 Septermber 2021, the following financial assels were exposed to credit nsk: demvative
financial assets, cash and cash equivalents and other recelvabies. The camying amounts of financial assets best reflect
thie maximum counterparty cfedit fisk exposure at the reporting date,

The raximum exposure to credit rsk (excludng notonal values on forward foreign currency contracts) as at the
raparting date can be analyzed as follvws. Amounis in the table below are basad on the market value

30-Sep-2022 H-Sap-2021
Instrument Type* AUD AUD
Cash and cadly squnalenls 27 387,500 24,270,879
Inberest recanable 18,17 1.237
Due Trom brokers:

Collateral amounls 1,100,000 2,070,000
Ferward fofeign currency contracls 24,538 5ET 8,421,038
Recersable for invesimenls sold 2,065 347 6,338,073
Recenable for Units subscribed 532 960 8,483,234
Oilfser assels 50 -
Total 56 448 621 49, 582 459

"Oipebn wndad imvesim ent comparies s nal Inchaded in this tabia sinos They g0 not axp-ase the Sub- Trust b dinect eredt risk
k¥
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11. Financial Investments and Associated Risks {continued)
<) Credit Risk (continued)
The Sub-Trugt has the following direct exposure to undedying ssuer crédit sk

Rating I0-Sop-2022  30-Sep-202
Hat Rated 100.00 100.00
Tatal 100.00% 100064,

The Master Fund has the following exposure to ssuer credit risk (as a percentage of total market value of the Master
Fund),

Security ratings, if any, are obtamned from S&RMNoody siFitch Investor Service.

A0-Sep-2027  30-Sep-F021

Ratlng % %

A - 0.es
BER 5318 53,84
BE 1335 1053
B ERT ] 303
Nt Rated 30.26 31.34
Total 1106 60% 100064

The table above indicates the credit quality of the Master Fund's investments. Counterpartss of IsSusrs are rated
either investrnent grade in their own nght of if not rated then an entily in the corporate family trea has such a ratng
and the Credit Risk Management and Adviseoy department of the Investment Manager baliéves thene s strong implicit
support from the rated entity to the counterparty or issuer. The Investment Advisors have a credit policy in place and
the exposure o credit risk is moniored on an ongoing basis.

A cradit default :emp i an agreement that imvolves ane party making a strearm of payments to ancther party in exchange
far the nght o receie protection on a reference secunty or obligation. As a saller of protection, the Sub-Trust generally
receves @ payment stream throughout the term of swap, provided that there is no credit event. In addition, if the Sub.
Trust sells protecton through a credit defaul swap, the Sub-Trust coukd suffer a loss because the value of the reference
obfigation may be less than the premium payments received. Lipon the occumence of a speciic credit event, the Sub-
Trust, a5 a seller of cradit protecton, may be required 1o take possession of the defaulled referénce obligabion and
pay the buyer an amount equal to the notional amount of the swap in a physical settled trade. The Sub-Trust may also
pay a net settlement amount in the form of cash or securties equal to the nobonal amount of the swap reduced by the
recovery value of the referance abligation i a cash sattied trade. Recovery values are al tmes establshed through
the eredit event auction process in which market particspants ane ensured that a ransparent pace his been set lor the
defaulted securnty or obligation. In addition, the Sub-Trust is entitled to a retum of any assets, which have been pledged
as collateral to the counterparty. The noticnal amount of the Sub-Trust's credit default swaps, if any, is disclosed in
thie Schedufes of Investments. There were no credit default swaps as at 30 September 2022 and 30 Sapternbar 2021.

The Sub-Trust had no direct counterparty or issuer credit nsk greater than 5% of the Net Assats Attributable Holders of
Redeemable Parbicipating Units as at 30 Septernber 2022 and 30 September 2021

The Sub-Trust measures credit risk and expected credit losses using probabidity of default. exposure at default and
ioss given delaull. Management conseder bath historical analyss and forward looking information in deterrmining any
sicpected credt bss Management consider the probability of default ta be close to zero as the courterpartes have 3
sirong capacity to meet ther contractual oblhgatons in the near term. AS a result, no loss allowance has been recognized
based on 12-month expected credit losses as any such impairment would be whaolly msignificant to the Sub-Trust

For the Master Fund the following table sets forth concentrations. greater than 5% of MAY,

k]
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11. Financial Investments and Associated Risks {continued)

i<} Credit Risk (continued)

I0-5ep-202F  I0-Bep-2021
% of Mot Assots of

Concentration Master Fund

Macoguane Group 877 534
AMP Ltd 7.04 837
hational Austraks Bank Lbd 670 662
Cafmimaiwealth Bank of Australia -~ B.36
Wiestoar Banking Corporation A 5.11

“Amound [ s Than %

Thie Master Fund medsures credit sk and expected credit losses using probability of default, exposure at default and
loss given default Management consider both histerical analyss and forward lecking information in determining any
expected credit loss. Management consider the probability of default to be close to zero as the courterparties have a
strong capacity to meet their contractual cbligations in the near term. As a result, no loss allowance has been recognised
based on 12.month expacted credit nsses ag any such impaimment would be whally insignificant to the Master Fund

{d)  Additional Risks

Addtional risks include, but are not imied to the follwang,
0} Capnal Rsk Management

The capial of the Sub-Trust s represented by the Net Assets Attributable Holders of Redeemable Particpating Uinits,
The amaunt of the Met Asssts Attributable Holders of Redesmable Particpating Unds can change significantly on a
daily bases as the Sub-Trust is subject to daily subscriptions and redemptions at the discretion of Unitholder, The Sub-
Trust's abjective when managing cagital is to safeguard the Sub-Trust's ability to continue as a going concern in crder
to provide returns for Unitholder and benedits for other stakeholders and to maintain a strong capital base to support the
development of the investment activties of the Sub-Trust,

{in Concantration Risk

The Sub-Trust may invest in a imited number of investments and investment themes. A consequence of a limited
number of imvestments is that peformance may be more favorably or unfavorably aflected by the pedormance of an
Inelieiclual imvestman

{iil  Operational Risk

COperational risk is the potential for loss caused by a deficency in information, communications, transachion processing
and settiement, and accounting systems. The Sub-Trust's service providers, as shown in Mote T, maintain controls and
procedures for the purpose of helping to manage operational nisk. Reviews of the service levels of service providers
are parfarmed an a regular basis by the Investment Advisors. Ne assurance is giveen that these measures will be 100%
oflective.

(v} Legal, Tax and Regulatory Risks

Legal, tax and regulatory changes could cecur duting the duration of the Sub-Trust which may adversely affect the
Sub-Trust

With respect to tax, the Sub-Trust may be subject 1o txaton on captal gains, interest and dividends in certam
Jurssdichons whare the Sub-Trust invests

34
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1. Financial Investments and Associated Risks (continued)
{d} Additional Risks (continued)
i) Legal, Tax and Regulatosy Risks (continued)

The interpretaton and applicability of the fax law and regulations by tax auvthorties at times may not be clear or
consstent Tax obligations where probable and estimable are recorded as kabilies. However, some tax obligations
ane subject to wcedainty and may result in additional tax liabdfies, interest and penalties based on future actions,
interpretations or judgments of these authorities covenng cument and past tax positions. Accounting standards may
also change, creating or remowing an obligation for the Sub-Trust o accrue for a potential tax Bability. Consequently, it
i% possible that certain potentsal tax obligations which currently are not probable may become s which may result in
additional tax habilises for the Sub-Trust in the fubwe and these additional liabilibes may be material. Because of the
foregoing uncertainties, the MAY may not reflect the tax liabilities ultimately borme by the Sub-Trust, including at the
time of any subscriptions, redemptions or exchanges of interests in the Sub-Trust, which could have an adverse impact
on investors at that tire.

Additicnal details of risk notdisclosed in these financial staternents can be found i the Sub-Trusts Offering Memorandum.

12, Credit Institutions

As at 30 September 2022 and 30 September 2021, all cash and cash equivalents and amounts due fromita brokers
et hield by the folliwang credit institutions with a credi rating of A of higher, Credit institutson ratings ane obtained from
SEFs | Moody's Investors Senice [ Fach Ratngs and are unaudited

Assols 2002 30-Sep-2021
%% of Hetl % of Net
Counterpany AUD Aszals AUD_ ASEME
Austrake and New Jealand Banking Ghoup Lid™ B, 326 00 1.1 16, 863 GET 1.67
Barciays Bark FLC™ B5.55 0.0 - -
BHP Paribas SA™ 18946 8T 2.8 102,256 1
Broat Brothers Harriman & Co™ - - T 247 134 T2
Brovwt Brothers Hafriman & o 15064 0.005 57,522 (1]
Total cash and cash equivalents 27 38T 500 37T 24 ¥T0BTS .41
Due from brokers: ™!
Ausliraks and Mew Jealand Banking Group Lid 360,000 0.05 = -
Citilank NA = = 1,030,000 oo
Rioyal Bank of Scatland 720,000 .10 C0, 000 .10
Total dus from brokers 1,100,000 0.15 2,07 0,000 0.20 |
T ima Dupaost
SUinreriined = Cuslodian Gish atont
B Eafich Bl BMSUrE g 55 B [han O (09%
MR gtnched - canh ool stersd for fonwand Sorsgn DUTEnoy Conbravls
Liabiities 2022 30-Sep-2021
% of Nt % of Nat
Cmnmrh AUD .i.'l!_'_u AUD AEII:
Due fo brokers™.
Barclays Bank PLC = = 3,723 807 [EE
Morgan Stanley 5 530,000 058 - =
Royal Bank of Cannda - - 3,720,000 037
Standard Charlered Bank 7,500,000 1.03 - -
Total dus to brokers 14,430,000 199 7,443,807 0.74
ORI D0 ~ i T o e ) DTy DEEAROH
35
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GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Heotes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended 30 Saptember 2022

3.

14.

15,

18,

1T

18,

18,

Exchange Rates

The following exchange rates (against AUD) were used to convert the investments and other assets and liabilities
denominated in currendies other than AUD:

M-Bep- 2022 30-Sop-20

Japanase Yen [2FY) 93063500 80 596204
Urited Saates Dallar (ST 0642950 0. 722350

Soft Commissions
The Sub-Trust may pay comrmessions for executon only andior for execution and investment research. The Sub-Trust

diel not otherwise enter into any therd party soft commission arangerments for the years ended 30 September 2022 and
30 Seplember 2021,

Contingent Liabilities
There were no contingent liabilites as at 30 September 2022 and 30 September 2021

Other Matters
Global financial markets have experienced and may continue o experience signficant volability resulting from the

spread of COVID-19. The extent of the impact of COVID-1% on the Sub-Trust's performance wall degend on future
developments, mcluding the duration and continued spread of the autbrealk.

Subsequent Events

Mo events cocurred subsequant 1o 30 Septembear 2022 that would reguire adpstment ta, of disclosure inthese inanciad
statements.

Indemnifications
The Sub-Trust may enter info contracds that contain a vanety of indemnifications. The Sub-Trust's maximum ex posunge

under these arrangements is unknown, However, the Sulb-Trust has not had prior claims or losses pursuant to these
contracts

Approval of the Financial Statements

Management has approved the inancial statemants on 22 December 2022 and the financial stalements may not be
amended after issuance,

36
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GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Schedule of Investments
As at 30 September 2022

% of
Haldings/ Fair Value Met
Units  Description AUD  Assets
Investment Fund®
Australian Dollar
4104284 Australia Enhanced Incorme Fund Il - Class 1D (Acc), AUD shares 710,205 307 8778
Tetal Investment Fund T10.205,307 9T.78
Ferward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Class Hedging Purposes
Unrealized % of
Maturity Amount Amount Gain Met
Date Curra Bought  Curnen Sold Coun AUD _ Assaets
QM OR0ZZ ALIDY 6317193 JPY 583,372,629 Margan Stanley & Co 45155 0.01
QEMOR0ZZ AD 299,312 JPY 27,735,000 Westpac Banking Comp 1,027 0.00
QSM o022 JBY 1,27 T T0T ALD 13,247,744 Morgan Stanley & Co 418,182 0.0
DEM o022 JPY 10,891 648 ALD 116,280 Ciibank Na 1,888 0.00
DEMOR0Z2 JPY 27,673,000 AUD 235,073 Royal Bank of Canada 11,33 0.00
Australia and Mew Zealand
0802022 JBy 3T 020676 ALD 384,505 Banking Group Lid 13123 0.00
OaM Q022 JPY 83,624,000 AUD 853,881 Westpac Banking Corp 45,033 0.
D&M o022 JRY 30,263,784 ALD 2,417,780 HSBC Bank FLC 568,504 0.0
Qs o022 UsD 58,000 ALD 87,387 BMNP Paribas S8 2812 0.00
0SM0022 uso 203,654 ALID 301,940 HSBC Bank PLC 22,541 0,00
0sM02022 uso 102,731,775 ALD 150,388,422 Standard Chartesed Bank £,893 990 1.2
OEM o022 UsD 103,812, TES ALD 152,851,002 Morgan Stanley & Co B Gad 3 1.23
22N 20z ush 95,952,957 ALD 145,785,503 Margan Stanley & Co 3233828 0.45
ZAMN2202T usD 95 052 057 ALD 145, 788 801 UBS AG 3322539 0.44
Total Unrealized Gain on Forward Fareign Currency Contracts held for Class Hedging
Purposes 24 938 987 3.43
Unrealized % of
Maturity Amount Amount Loss Met
Date Currancy Bought  Currency Sold Counterparty __AUD __ Aggets
OaM o022 ALD av2.004 UsD 253,000 Credit Suisse (21,401) (.00
QaMor0zz ALID 728,427 usD 517,440 Royal Bank of Canada (78,355) [0.01)
QEM0R0ZZ ALID 1,300,371 usD 801,658 HSBC Bank PLC (101.9893) (Q.01)
OSM Q2022 AUD 629,320 usD 3,788,533 Standard Chartered Bank (280,155) (0.04)
QSO0 ALUD 7,283,658 JEY G88,420,068 Westpac Banking Corp (104, 235 (0.02)
Australia and Mew Zealand
osMo0zz ALD 7,603,443 usD 5,317,786 Banking Group Ltd (457 398) [0.0E)
0SMO022 AUD 145,978,350 uso 95,952,957 UBS AG (3,257.855) (0.45)
OSMOR2022 AUD 153,360,737 uso 101,008,135 Morgan Stanley & Co (3,733.871) (0.52)
Australia and Mew Zealand
DaM o022 ALD 435,423 JEY 40, 678,458 Banking Group Ltd {1.763) (10,00
DEMOR0Z2 ALID 13,678,041 JPY 1,332 533,295 Margan Stanley & Co {441 800 [0.08)
22N 2022 ALD 1,413,963 usD 817,000 Morgan Stanley & Co (10,180) (.00
0EM02022 JEY 26,620,608 ALD 286,572 Standard Chanesed Bank (476) (0.00)
DEM o022 JPY 2875013 488 ALD 28,105,488 Royal Bank of Scotland PLC {256.684) (D.05)
OEM Q2022 JPY 2680013488 AUD 28,157,287 Morgan Stanley & Co (354, 050) [0.05)
Total Unrealized Loss on Farward Forelgn Currency Contracts held fer Class Hedging
Purposes (8,214,318) {1.27)
The scoempanying robes iom an integral part of S financial statements. B
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GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Schedule of Investments
As at 30 September 2022

% of
Fair Value Met
Total Investments ALD Assets
Total Investment Fund 710,205,207 9778
Taotal Unrealized Gain on Foreard Foredgn Currency Contracts held for Class Hedging
Purposes 24,0638 98T 343
Total Unreahzed Loss on Forward Foresgn Currency Contracts held for Class Hedging
Purposes (9,214,318 (1.27)
Other Assets and Liabilites 416,077 0.08
Het Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units 726,346,053 100.00
Represents affiliated holding.
Currency Abbreviations:
ALID Ausiralan Dollar
JPY Japanese Yen
us0 United States Doltar
The sconmpasying nobes fom an integral part of Se fnancial salements. T
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GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Schedule of Investments
As at 30 September 2021

% of
Haldings/ Fair Value Met
Units  Description AUD  Assets
Investment Fund®
Australian Dollar
5817827  Australia Enhanced Incorme Fund Il - Class 10 (Acc), AUD shares 500 358 724 97.59
Tetal Investment Fund 900,268 T24 97.99
Ferward Foreign Currency Contracts held for Class Hedging Purposes
Unrealized % of
Maturity Amount Amount Gain Met
Date Currency Bought _ Currency Sold Counterparty AUD _ Assets
12102021 ALD 2,185,085 uso 1,543,000 HSBC Bank FLC 29,362 0.00
LEfaklraery] AUD 302,265 JPY 28,334,860 JPMorgan Chase & Co &a7 0.00
1T ALD 1,243,753 JEY 88 845 502 Royal Bank of Scotland PLC 18,608 0.00
Tan iz usD GG, 238 AL B0, 410 UBS AG 19,368 0.00
T2an iz usD 1,076,581 AD 1,472,705 State Street Bank & Trust Co. 17431 0.00
Australa and Mew Zeatand
1211203 uso 4,505,323 AUD 5,118,514 Banking Group Ltd 120,853 0.04
T2 usD 152,511,867 AUD 205,585 351 Barclays Bank PLC 4,110,851 0.41
121130 UsD 152,511,867 AUD 206 504 508 Royal Bank of Canada 4102 805 0.41
Total Unrealized Gain on Forward Forelgn Currency Contracts held for Class Hedging
Purposes B.421,036 0.83
Unrealized % of
Maturity Amount Amount Loss Met
Date Currency Bought  Currency Sold Counterparty ALUD  Assels
T2niz ALUD 1,325,863 sD 965 582 Morgan Stanley & Co (10,834) (.00
12112021 ALD 1,868,332 usD 1,353,158 BNP Paribas SA (28,140 .00}
121130 ALUD o D, 338 LsD 3609118 UBS AG [26,178) (0000
1210 ALD 7252 844 sD 5,328, 352 State Street Bank & Trust Co. (118,455) (D.01)
TR AUD 278,058 JPY 22,573,954 State Street Bank & Trust Co. [2.022) (Q.00)
1THEE JEY 36,272,754 ALD 450,162 Citibank bA (B2) (0.00)
1T JPY 232,247 827 ALID 2,888 810 HSBC Bank FLC [4,847) (0000
24202 JPY 13,008, 500 ALD 168,378 Morgan Stanley & Co (3,850 (0000
241152021 JPY 2,770 TER 195 ALID 35,476.819 Royal Bank of Scotland PLC (1.083,312) Q1)
24112021 JEY 2 TT0,TED, 158 AUD 38,470,087 Citibank MA (1,086, 560) {211}
121102021 usD 1,563,150 AUD 2,183,003 Morgan Stanley & Co (1,851) [0.00)
Total Unrealized Loss on Forward Farelgn Currency Contracts held for Class Hedging
Purposes 2376974 0,23
The scoempasying nobes fom an integral par of Se fnancial satements. B
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GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund
Schedule of Investments
As at 30 September 2021

% of
Fair Value Met
Total Investments ALD ASSUS
Total Investrment Fund 990,388,724 97.99
Taotal Unrealized Gain on Foreard Foredgn Currency Contracts held for Class Hedging
Purposes 8.4 036 083
Total Unreahzed Loss on Forward Foregn Currency Contracts held for Class Hedging
Purpeses (2,376,974) (0.23)
Other Assets and Liabilites. 14,272 862 1.41
Net Assets Attributable to Halders of Redeemable Participating Units 1.010,685,648 10:0.00
Represents affiliated holding.
Currency Abbreviations:
AUD Australian Dollar
JPY Japanese Yen
usD United States Dollar
The scoempasying nobes fom an integral par of Se fnancial satements. ]
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2023
684,531,697.85 62,928,998,983
7,377,201.76 678,186,158
43,097,841.34 5,622,975,360
307,697,829.82 28,286,661,495
4,536,029,252
182,359,340.70 23,792,423,181
8,439,924.19
39,724,475.01
540,718.04
18,916,383.29
5.11 667
7.75 712
8,389
9.64 1,258

181/296



Q

Q@

@3

182/296

EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

50

10



@

(¢

2023

187,117,965.90
5,051,655

37.04
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UFJ S.A.

2021 12 31

2021 2020

31.1,31.3 7,093,833,508 925,532,458  4,532,995,593 591,419,935

3,15,31.1,31.3 3,730,155,270 486,673,358  3,037,512,831 396,304,299

1,997,606,438 260,627,712  1,555,628,740 202,962,882

1,732,548,832 226,045,646  1,481,884,091 193,341,417

31.1,31.3 3,605,721 470,438 7,934,281 1,035,186
4,31.1,31.3 2,819 368 3,033 396
5 3,862,788 503,978 4,710,734 614,609

6a 227 30 6,000,367 782,868
6b,15 37,679,055 4,915,986 31,779,267 4,146,241

7 10,869,139,388  1,418,096,616 7,620,936,106 994,303,534
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UFJ S.A.
2021 12 31

2021 2020
15,31.1  3,115,164,719 406,435,541 1,709,328,688 223,016,114
3,115,164,719 406,435,541 1,709,328,688 223,016,114
0 0 0 0
8,15,31.1  7,206,246,667 940,199,003 5,363,495,359 699,775,239
7,206,246,667 940,199,003  5,363,495,359 699,775,239
0 0 0 0
9 889,765 116,088 2,082,383 271,689
10,15 51,353,342 6,700,071 57,840,142 7,546,403
5,547,897 723,834 13,923,076 1,816,544
11 3,308,750 431,693 11,830,337 1,543,504
12 2,239,146 292,141 2,092,739 273,040
13 187,117,966 24,413,281 187,117,966 24,413,281
14 287,051,462 37,451,604 247,675,774 32,314,258
14 69,819 9,109 70,174 9,156
15,697,750 2,048,085 39,402,544 5,140,850
16 10,869,139,388  1,418,096,616  7,620,936,106 994,303,534
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UFJ S.A.
2021 12 31
2021 2020
17,31.1 545,003 71,107 580,391 75,724
545,003 71,107 580,391 75,724
20 43,689,649,279 5,700,188,541 78,178,721,148 10,199,977,748
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UFJ S.A.
2021 12 31

2021 2020
53,506,253 6,980,961 61,610,819 8,038,364
10,173,725 1,327,366 12,160,020 1,586,518
34,108,535 4,450,141 25,573,309 3,336,550
(38,412,804)  (5,011,719)  (28,557,337) (3,725,876)
(38,153,213)  (4,977,850)  (24,493,537) (3,195,672)
(131,483) (17,155) 127,727) (16,665)
0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0
21 154,145,261 20,111,332 145,574,882 18,993,155
(81,932,662)  (10,689,754)  (72,054,185) (9,400,910)
5,537,488 722,476 4,668,204 609,061
22 5,473,576 714,137 1,924,254 251,057
(72,749,111)  (9,491,577)  (56,732,446) (7,401,882)
24,25  (27,324,178)  (3,564,986)  (22,100,683) (2,883,476)
(19,840,859)  (2,588,637)  (18,041,424) (2,353, 865)
(2,624,675) (342,441) (2.606,334) (340,048)
(1,486,802) (193,983) (1,602,327) (209,056)
26,30  (45,424,934)  (5,926,591)  (34,631,763) (4,518, 406)
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(1,527,483) (199,291) (1,684,655) (219,797)

23 (1,414,703) (184,576) (400,035) (52,193)
11,27.1  (5,089,413) (664,016)  (13,053,249) (1,703,057)
17,536,401 2,287,974 41,296,252 5,387,922

27.2 (1,838,651) (239, 889) (1,893,708) (247,072)
15,697,750 2,048,085 39,402,544 5,140,850
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UFJ S.A.

2021 12 31

1.1.
UFJ S.A.
1974 11
1996

2005 10

2006

2007
70 30

2008 28 49,080
1,817,968.52 37,117,968.52
92.25
63.72 28.53
2014
12-13
1993
907648
2016
UFJ S.A.
2017 31 UFJ
S.A. 100

1.2.
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2.1.

2.2.

2.3.

2.4.

2.5.

2.6.

2020

2021
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1997 12 16
1.25
2021 12 31 2020

2.7.

2.5
2.8.

10

2.11.
2.12.

2.13.
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2.14.
2.15.
2021 2020
2,722,598,923 606,285,500
1,007,556,346 875,598,591
3,730,155,270 1,481,884,091
2,819 2020 3,033

3,699,449 61,834 0 261,083 3,500,201 3,044,872 455,329
1,022,008 31,050 0 72,127 980,932 752,484 228,449
2,677,441 30,784 0 188,956 2,519,269 2,292,388 226,880
23,844,581 951,167 0 1,545,495 19,842,793 19,842,793 3,407,459
21,899,142 951,167 0 1,545,495 17,897,354 17,897,354 3,407,459
1,945,439 0 0 0 1,945,439 1,945,439 0
27,544,030 1,013,001 0 1,806,578 22,887,665 22,887,665 3,862,788
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2021 2020
227 6,000,367
227 6,000,367
2020 12 31
2021
2021 2020
1,809,613 5,933,296
3,228,665 1,612,214
703,562 858,421
1,282,640 1,512,122
17,078,721 14,654,292
6,064,153 5,437,372
758,601 364,437
404,820 177,468
521,373 363,811
710,430 387,854
4,187,017 818
929,460 477,162
37,679,055 31,779,267
2021 12 31 8,056,485,201 2020

5,991,487,186

2021 12 31 2020 12 31
2021 2020
622,608 678,795
267,157 1,403,588
889,765 2,082,383
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10
2021 2020
14,627,561 9,248,976
* 13,086,289 5,966,428
31,247 0
0 47,421
* 2,335,652 6,000,000
9.9 20,170,200 36,126,293
581,019 140,872
* 521,374 310,152
51,353,342 57,840,142
@) 2021 2,160,680
3,890,133
@) 2021
(@) 2021 12 31
11
2018 2016
21 L.G.-A 60
2021 12 31
12
2021 2020
2,239,147 2,092,739
2,239,147 2,092,739
13
2021 12 31 5,002,575

49,080 187,117,966
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2021
2020

2021

2021

2021

2021

2017
2018
2019
2020
2021
2021

2021

12 31

2021
2015

12 31

12 31

18

12 31

12 31

12 31

10

45,742,351
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9,887,898 237,787,876 70,174
0 0 39,402,544
0 0 (27,212)
0 11,874,000 (11,874,000)
0 (3,348,440) 3,348,440
0 28,880,000 (28,880,000)
1,970,128 0 (1,970,128)
11,858,026 275,193,436 69,819
2020 37,216,791
11,874,000 2021
2015 3,348,440
2021
4,276,351
8,700,000
9,981,000
10,911,000
11,874,000
45,742,351
2021 2020
2,000,338,586 2,523,209,017
16,028,664 18,411,677
2,016,367,250 2,541,620,694

2021
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575 2013

2021 12 31

16
2021 12 31
5,998,748,318

17

18
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2,952,250,135 1,685,102,780
840,148,829 589,335,450
9,626,650 5,093,264
3,802,025,614 2,279,531,494
2013 26

2,159,384,437

2021 2020
1,808,585,590 2,522,808,891
1,470,954 5,944,840
134,630,654 57,144,242
1,944,687,198 2,585,897,973

8,054,585,535

2021 2020

545,003 580,391

2021 2020
2,796,181 4,216,945
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19
2021 12 31 2020 12 31
20
21
2021 2020

26,016,529 24,626,803

117,947,111 108,765,953

7,630,429 9,891,734

1,134,939 858,421

1,416,253 1,431,971

154,145,260 145,574,882

1992 17 69 (2)
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22
2021 2020
2015 2018 0 88,772
1,115,225 1,168,278
534,448 532,488
* 3,820,715 0
0 84,638
3,188 50,078
5,473,576 1,924,254
™
10
23
2021 2020
178,276 87,248
877,581 244,112
42,595 2,765
316,251 65,910
1,414,703 400,035
24
2021 2020
33 28
85 85
52 56
170 169
25
2021 2020
5,306,782 4,877,002
754,378 811,702
4,552,405 4,065,300

2021 12 31 2020 12 31
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26
2021 2020
1,364,350 1,273,871
1,135,290 1,470,242
4,913,868 4,291,080
6,153,665 3,782,542
1,739,510 1,279,480
7,969,490 6,402,064
3,509,929 3,166,402
17,958,719 11,802,849
561,452 563,427
12,374 108,354
106,286 491,452
45,424,934 34,631,763
27
27.1.
2021 2020
3,710,052 9,580,154
1,379,361 3,473,095
5,089,413 13,053,249
27.2.
2021 2020
1,766,322 1,825,735
72,329 67,973
1,838,651 1,893,708
28
2020 12 31
100
33 100-
8212

100
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100,000

100,000

107 (1)

2024
179 (1)
0.8
2016
0.8
0.8
2021 12 31
) 2020 2,879,732

30

2014 49

2018

3,283,564
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2014 59
2015 12 18
20,000
12
2024
2015
2018
180 (1)
3,245,118 (3,941,196
2020
2021 2020
254,582 257,225
67,930 56,245
33,839 22,550

356,351 336,020
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2021 2021 12 31 3402
15,107
31
31.1.
2021 12 31
7,093,833,508 0 0 0 7,093,833,508
2,722,598,923 1,007,556,347 0 0 3,730,155,270
3,605,721 0 0 0 3,605,721
0 0 0 2,819 2,819
0 0 0 0 0
9,820,038,152  1,007,556,347 0 2,819 10,827,597,318
3,115,164,719 0 0 0 3,115,164,719
7,206,246,667 0 0 0 7,206,246,667
10,321,411,386 0 0 0 10,321,411,386
545,003 0 0 0 545,003
545,003 0 0 0 545,003
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2020 12 31

4,532,995,593 0 0 0 4,532,995,593
2,161,914,240 875,598,591 0 0 3,037,512,831
7,934,281 0 0 0 7,934,281

0 0 0 3,033 3,033

6,000,000 0 0 0 6,000,000
6,708,844,114 875,598,591 0 3,033  7,584,445,738
1,709,328,688 0 0 0 1,709,328,688
5,363,495,359 0 0 0 5,363,495,359
7,072,824,047 0 0 0 7,072,824,047
580,391 0 0 0 580,391
580,391 0 0 0 580,391
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3,881,995,296 589,236 0 0 3,882,584,532 33,989,292

1,385,898,582 0 0 0 1,385,898,582 28,426,708

5,267,893,878 589,236 0 0 5,268,483,114 62,416,000

3,915,453,725 591,608 0 0 3,916,045,333 33,927,979

6,118,018,224 0 0 0 6,118,018,224 50,321,336

10,033,471,949 591,608 0 0 10,034,063,557 84,249,315
2021 12 31 2021 12 31
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4,826,443,660 5,041,174 0 4,831,484,834 19,024,454

2,872,843,236 0 0 2,872,843,236 11,023,212

7,699,286,896 5,041,174 0 7,704,328,070 30,047,666

4,766,463,318 5,073,276 0 4,771,536,594 18,983,782

2,044,899,016 0 0 2,044,899,016 42,172,709

6,811,362,334 5,073,276 0 6,816,435,610 61,156,491
2020 12 31 2020 12 31
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31.3.

2021 12 31

2021

7,093,833,508
97,631,550
7,093,833,508

3,730,155,270
940,703,432
829,542,452
1,825,388,304

2020

4,532,995,593
74,074,339
4,532,995,593

3,037,512,831
683,470,279
331,454,821
1,950,621,860

29,926,203 56,563,445
104,594,879 15,402,426
3,605,721 7,934,281
91,423 7,365,151
1,357,565 38,644
2,156,733 530,486
0 0

2,819 3,033
2,819 3,033

227 6,000,000

227 6,000,000

10,827,597,545

7,584,445,738
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31.4.
2021 12 31
2021 2021
280,117,356 1,814,411
2,575,793,556 24,076,449
395,811,895 2,490,877
630,861,725 5,607,555
1,385,898,582 28,426,708
5,268,483,114 62,416,000
2020 12 31
2020 2020
1,573,370,543 9,120,220
2,763,233,382 7,104,859
494,880,909 2,799,375
2,872,843,236 11,023,212
7,704,328,070 30,047,666
32

2022
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKIMG (LUXEMBOURG) S.A.
BALANCE SHEET
December 31, 2021

{in LU=D)
ASSETS

Motes 2021 2020
Cash, balances with central banks
and post office banks F3 % P T.0%3.833.508 4,532.995.593
Loans and advances to credit institutions 315,311, 31.3, 3,730.155.270 3037512831
a) repayable on demand 1.987.606.438 1.555.628.740
b} other leans and advances 1.732.548.832 1.481.884.001
Loans and advances o customers 31,313 3.605.T21 T.934.281
Shares and other variable-yield securities 4,311,313 2819 3.033
Fixed Assets 5 3.862.788 4,710.734
Other assets Ba 227 6.000.367
Prepayments and accrued income ek, 15 3T.679.055 .77, 26T
TOTAL ASESETS T 10.869.1389, 388 T.620.936,108

The accompanying notes form an mtegral part of the annual accounts.

-13.
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKIMG (LUXEMBOURG) S.A
BALANCE SHEET
Decamber 31, 2021
{in US0)
- contmued -

LIABILITIES

Motes 2021 2020
Amounts owed to credit institutions 15,311, 3115164719 1.709.328.688
a) repayable on demand 3115184.719 1.709.328 688
b) with agreed maturity dates ] L
Amounts owed to customers 8,15, 31.14. T.206.246.667 5.363.495.359
a) repayable on demand T.206 246 867 5353 485359
b) with agreed maturity dates. o 0
Other liabilities E:] 889,765 2082383
Accruals and deferred income 10,15 51.353.342 G7.840.142
Provisions 5.54T.89T7 13.523.076
a) provisions for taxation 1 3308750 11.830 337
b) other provisions 12 2238148 2082728
Subscribed capital 13 18T A117.966 187.117.966
Reserves 14 287.031.462 247.675.774
Result braught ferward 14 659.819 TOATS
Profit for the financial year 15,697,750 39,402,544
TOTAL LIABILITIES 16 “10.869.135.388

The accompanying notes form an mtegral part of the annual accounts.

-14.
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKIMG (LUXEMBOURG) S.A
OFF BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
Decamber 31, 2021

{in USD)
Motes 2021 2020
Contingent liabilities 17,314, 545.003 580,23
af which:
guarantees and assets pledged as
collateral security S45.003 S60.31
Fiduclary operations 20 43.689,849.279 78.178.721.148

The accompanying notes form an mtegral part of the annual accounts.
-15.
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BAMKIMNG (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
Year ended December 31, 2021
{in USD)
Motes 20 2020
Interest recelvable and similar income 53.508.253 61.510.819
af which:
MNegative interast received on amounts owed 10173725 12160020
to credit institutions and to customers 34108535 25573309
- Interest Gain from foreign currency swap
Interest payable and similar charges (38.412.804) {28.557.337)
af which:
- Megative interest paid on leans and advances (38.153.213) (24,493 537)
and on balances with credit institutions
- Interest Loss from foreign currency swap {131.483) (127.727)
Income from securities o 4]
Imcome from shares and other variable yield securities i) 4]
Commission receivable 21 154,145,264 145,574 882
Commission payable (81.932.662) {72.054.185)
Met profit on financial operations 5.53T 488 4,668 204
Other operating income 22 5473576 1.924.254
General administrative expenses (72.748.411) (56.732 448)
a) staff costs 24,25 (27.324 178) (22.100.583)
of which:
wages and salaries [19,840,855) (18.041.424)
social security costs (2624 675) (2 606 334)
of which:
- social securdy costs relating to pensions (1.486.802) (1.802.327)
b) other administrative expenses 26, 30 (45.424.934) (34.631.763)
Value adjustments in respect of tangible (1.52T 483) (1.684.655)
and intangible assets
Other operating charges 23 {1.414.703) (400.035)
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 11, 271, {5.089.413) (13.053.243)
Profit on ardinany activities after tax 17.536.404 41,256,252
Other taxes net shawn under the preceding items 27.2 (1.838.651) (1.893.708)
Praofit for the financial year 15.697.750 39.402.544

The accompanying notes form an mtegral part of the annual accounts.
=17 -
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4
HOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2021

HOTE 1 - GEMERAL

1.1

Corporate matters

Mitsubishi UFJ Investor Services & Banking (Luxembourg) 5 4. (the "Bank”) was incorporated in Luxembourg
on April 11, 1974 as a socidld anomyme.,

Om April 1, 1885, the Parent Bank, The Bank of Tokyo, Lid., merged with The Misubishi Bank, Limited to form
The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi Ltd_, and Bank of Tokyo (Luxembourg) S.4. changed its name to Bank of
Tokyo-Mitsubishi (Luzembourg) S.A.,

On October 1, 2005, the indirect shareholder, Mitsubshi Tokyo Financial Group, Inc. (MTFG) merged with UFJ
Holdings, Inc. (UFJ) and formed a new financial group, Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group (MUFG).

On January 1, 2008, the Parent Bank, The Bank of Tokye-Mitsubsshi, Ltd. merged with LFJ Bank Limited to
form The Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ Ltd,, and Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi (Luxembourg) 5.4 changed its
name 1o Bank of Tokya-Mitsubishi UF) (Luxembourg) S A..

On April 2, 2007, the Bank became a jointly capfalized subsidiary of Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking
Corporation by 70% and Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UF.J Ltd. by 30%, which are under the same holding
company Mitsubishi LIFJ Finangial Group (MUFG), Consequently, Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi LIFJ
{Luxembourg) 5.4 changed its name to MITSUBISHI UFJ Global Custody S.A. (MUGC).

On April 28, 2008, MITSUBISHI UFJ) Global Custody S5 4., has issued 48,080 new shares and the capital of the
Bank has been increased by USD 1,817 968,52 The total subscribed share capital is currently set at

USD 37.117.965,52. The two major shareholders of the Bank hold 52,25% of the capetal, Mitsubishi UFJ Trust
and Banking Corporation by 62,729 and Bank of Tekyo-Mitsubishi UF.J Ltd. by 28,53%

Om August 7, 2014, MITSUBISHI UF) Global Custody S A. has established an external branch located at
Ormmande House, 12-13 lower Lesson Street, Dublin 2, Ireland. Mitsubishi UFJ Global Custody S A, Dublin
Branch is registered as credit institution pursuant to UE Regulation, 1803, under the number 807648,

.16,
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MITSUBISHI UF) INVESTOR SERVICES & BAMKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.A.
MOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2021
- continued -

Cn May 1, 2016, MITSUBISHI UF.J Global Custody 5 A, has changed its name fo MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR

SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) S.A. (MIEL).

On May 31, 2017, Masubishi UFJ Trust and Banking Corporation obtained 100% of the voting shares of Masubishi
UFJ Investor Services & Banking (Luxembourg) 5.4,

The members of the Board of Directors are Senior Executives of Migsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking Corporation G roup
and Independent Directors, The business palicy and valuation principles, unless prescribed by the legal requirements.

existing in Luxembourg, are determined and monitored by the Board of Directors in accordance with those appled in
Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group.

Nature of business

The abject of the Bank & the undertaking for its own account, a5 well as for the aceount of third parties either within or

outside the Grand-Duchy of Luxembourg, of any banking or financial cperations, as well as all other operations,

whether industrial or commercial of in real estate, which directly or indirectly relate to the main object described above,

Mare specifically, the Bank concentrates its activiies on investmant management senvices,

A significant volume of the Bank's transactions is concluded directly or indirectly with companies of Mitsubishi UFJ
Financial Group.

Annual aecoynts

The Bank prepares its annual accounts in US Dollars (USD), the currency in which the capital is expressed. The Bank's

accounting year coincides with the calendar year,

MOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING FOLICIES

The Bank prepares its annual accounts under the historical cost principle in accardance with the laws and regulations.
in force in the Grand-Duchy of Luxembourg and on the basis of accounting principles generally accepted in the banking
secior in the Grand-Duchy of Luxembeurg

215/296
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INWESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) S.A.
HOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2021
- cantinued -
In gbserving these, the follpwing significant accounting policies are applied,

Th in n { in I

Assets and labilites are stated in the balance sheet on the date the amounts concemed become cleared funds, that is,
on their date of effective transfes.

Eoreign gurgncies

The Bank maintains a mulli-currency accounting system which records all fransactions in the currency or currencies of

the transaction, on the day on which the contract is concluded.

Assets and lmbilites are converted inte USD at the spot exchange rates applicable at the balance sheet date. Both
reaksed and ynrealised profts and losses arising on revaluation are accounted for in the profit and loss account for the
year, except for those resulting from items specifically covered by a forward foreign exchange contract (swap and
hedging forward foreign exchange contract) which are recorded at historical exchange rates.,

Revenues and expenses in foreign curmencies are translated into USD daily at the prevailing exchange rates

At the year-end, all unsetied forward transactions are translated into USD at the forward rate prevailing on the Balance
Shest date for the remaining maturibes.

Results an unsettled forward transactions linked o spot transactions and on swap transactions are accrued at the
balance sheet date. In case of unrealised results on position covered by foreign exchange swap, these are neutralized
at year end.

: . o

The Bank's commiiments dernving frem the denvatives finantial instruments such as interest rate swaps, forward rate
agreements, financial futures and options are recorded on the transaction date among the off balance sheet tems.

-
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MITSUBISHI UF) INVESTOR SERVICES & BAMKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.A.
MOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2021
- continued -

At the year-end, where necessary, a provision is set up in respect of individual unrealised losses resulting from the
revaluation of the Bank's commitments at market value. There is no provision for unrealized losses on forward deals
recorded for the year 2021 (2020: USD nil).

Mo provision is set up in those cases where a financial instrument clearly covers an asset or a liability and economic

unity is established or whene a financial instrument & hedged by a reverse transaction so that no apen positian exists.

It ks the Bank's policy to establish specific value adjustments in respect of doubtful and irecoverable debis. as deemed
appropriate by the Board of Directors.

‘alue adjustments, if any, are deducted from the assets to which they relate.

relate,

In accordance with the Luxembourg tax legislation, the Bank can establish a lump-sum provision for risk exposures, as
defined in the legislation governing prudential supervesion of banks. The purpose of the provision is to take account of
risks which are kely to crystalise but which have not yet been identified as at the date of preparation of the annual

ACCoUNtS.

Pursuant to the Instructions ssued by the Direcleur des Contributions on December 16, 1997, this provisian should be
made before taxation and should not exceed 1,25% of the Bank's risk exposures.

The Bank has not constituted any provision as of December 31, 2021 (2020 USD 0).

= 22=
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INWVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) S.A.
MOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
Decamber 31, 2021
- cantinued -
Transferable securities
Transferable securities are recorded initialty at their purchase price. The average cost methed is used for initial

recognition. Value adjustments, calculated as described in note 2.5, or ansing from a diminution of value, ane deducted

from the account balance.

Tangible and intangibl

Tangible and intangible assets are valued at purchase price. The value of tangible and intangible fced assets with
lirnited useful econemic lives is reduced by value adjustments calculated to write off the value of such assets
systermatically over their useful economic lives as follows:

+ Hardware equipment: 4 years,

«  Software: 4 years and 5 years;

s (ther intangible assets: 5 years,

« Other tangible assets; 10 years;
*»  Goodwall: 5 years.

Iaxes

Taxes are accounted for on an accruals basis m the accounts of the year to which they relate. Provision for taxation
cormesponds to the difference between the estimated provisions created by the Bank and the advance payments for the
financial years for which no final tax assessment natices have been receved yet

Prepayment and accrued income

This asset item includes expendiung incurred during the financial vear but relating to a subsequent financial year.

Agcruals and deferred incorme

This liabikty item includes income received during the financial year but relating to a subsequent financial year.

P T
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BAMKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.A.
MOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2021
- continued -

Provisions

Provisions are intended to cover losses or debis the nature of which is clearly defined and which, at the date of the
balance sheet are ether ikely to be incurred or certain to be incurred but uncerain as to their amount or as to the date
on which they will arise.

The Bank's main sireams of revenue are comprised of interests and commissions income. The Bank earns fee and
cormmission income from a wide range of services it provides to its customers.

Revenue is generally recognized when the related services are performed or recognized over the peniod that the
SENICES ane proveded,

MOTE 2 - LOANS AND ADVAMNCES TO CREDIT INSTITUTIONS

Loans and advances to credit insttutions other than those repayable on demand, presented at their nominal valuwe
may be analysed according to their remaining maturity as follows:

2021 2020

usoD uso

Mot more than three months 2722508923 506, 285.500
Mare than three months but less than one year 1.007 556 3456 B75.598.501
3730155270 1,481 884 081

NOTE 4 - SHARES AND OTHER YVARIABLE YIELD SECURITIES

Transferable securities shown under the item “Shares and other vanable vield securities” consist entirely of unlsted
securities for LUISD 2,819 (2020; USD 3.033),

.74
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) S A
MOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2021
- continued -

HOTE 5 - MOVEMENT S IN FIXED ASSETS

The following movements have occummed in the Bank's fixed assets in the course of the financial year:

FIXED ASSETS:
Gross value at Additions Disposals Exchange Gross value at Cumulative Met value at
the beginning difference the end of the value the end of
of the financial financial year adjustments the financial
year wyear
LED UsD UsD UsD LsD UsD usD
1. Tangible assets 3699445 61.834 4] -261.083 3.500.201 3044 872 455329
a) Hardware 1.022.008 31.050 8] -T2.127 5580.932 TH2.484 228,449
) Other fetures and fittings, flat furniture,
equipment and vehicles 2677441 30.784 0 -188.958 2.519.2688 2.282.388 226 880
2. Intangible assets Z3.844.581 851 167 4] -1.545.455 19.842.753 19842753 3.40T.455
a) Software 21.809.142 951.167 0 «1.545.495 17.897.354 17.897.354 3.407 455
b) Goodwill acquired for valuable
Consideration 1.845439 o 4] o 1.945.439 1.945.439 0
Tatal Fixed Assets 27.544.020 1.013.001 4] -1.BDE.5TE 22,887 665 22 8BT EBES 3.882.788

Goodwal acguired for valuable consideration represents the value of the takeover of part of the chent base of another institubion.

. 25.
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) S.A

HOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2021
- contnued -
NOTE 6a - OTHER ASSETS

2021 2020

usDh usD

Other assats 227 5,000,387

227 6.000,. 367

At December 31, 2020, the main item includes receivable related to the upcoming change of sub custody and
technology provider. The amount was settled in January 2021

NOTE &b - PREPAYMENTS AND ACCRUED INCOME

The Bank's prepayments and accrued income may be analysed as follows:

2021 2020

UsD usD

Accrued interest income 1.808.613 5933 208
Accrued Interest income on Swaps 3.228 655 1612214
Commission from the Management Company 703.562 858.421
Commission on fiduciary operations 1,252 840 1512122
Commission on global custady 17.078.721 14,654 282
Commission on investment funds 6.064.153 5437372
Cther accrued income 758.601 354,437
Other Commissions 404 820 177 458
Cther prepay ments 521373 363811
Frepaid general expenses 710.430 387854
Prepaid income taxes 4187.017 818
VAT recoverabla G20 460 477182
37.679.055 31,779,267
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MITSUBISHI UF) INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5 A
HOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2021
- contmued -

HNOTE 7 - FOREIGH CURRENCY ASSETS

At December 31, 2021, the aggregate amount of the Bank's assets denominated in foreign currencies,
transiated into USD, is USD 5,055 485201 (2020: USD 5.991.457 186).

NOTEB - AMOUNTS OWED TO CUSTOMERS

As at December 31, 2021, there is no debts other than those repayable on demand owed to customers.
{as at December 31, 2020 debts other than repayable on demand amaounted to LSD 0),

HOTES - OTHER LIABILITIES

The Bank's other labilties may be analysed as follows:

20 2020

uUsh UsD

Preferentsal creditors 522608 GT8.795
Sundry creditors 287157 1.403 588
BBO 785 2082383

.97
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MITSUBISHI UF) INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5 A
HOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2021
- contmued -

NOTE 10 - ACCRUALS AND DEFERRED INCOME

The Bank's accruals and deferred income may be analysed as follows:

2021 2020
uso uso
Acerued commission 14.627.561 9.245.976
Accrued general expenses(®) 13.085. 288 5.966 428
Accrued interest expenses 31,247 a
Deferred income related o commission o 47421
Cther deferred income(*) 2.335.852 6.000.000
Meutrakzation of foreign exchange results on position covered
by fareign exchange swap (note 2.2 20170, 200 36,126,283
Other accrued expenses 581.019 140872
Cther suspense recsipts (%) 521.374 o152
51.353.342 57.840.142

{*) Accrued general expenses: Include in 2021 the costs relating to social plan following the externalisation of
Fund Accounting for an amaunt of USD 2,160,680 and costs of anercus contract following change of sub-
custadian from Biown Brother Harfiman to Citibank for an amaunt of USD 3.890.133

{*) Other defared income:. In relation to the note &a, the amount in 2021 is mainly composed of neutralisation of
costs from the change of sub custody and technology provider.

{*) Other suspense receipts: Transtory account for suspense receipts payable after the December 31, 2021 to
the related beneficiary.

.28
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MITSUBISHI UF) INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5 A
HOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2021
- contmued -

NOTE 11 - TAXATION - EXCHANGE DIFFERENCE: DEFERRED TAXATION
The Bank prepares its annual accounts in USD, currency in which its statutory capital is denominated.
In September 2018 the Tax Authorities authorized the Bank to use the USD tax functional currency in
accordance with the Circular L.G.-A no 60 dated June 21, 2016.

Consequenty the fiscal and commercial balance sheets are established in the same currency the USD.
As at December 31, 2021, there is no deferred tax.

HNOTE 12 - OTHER PROVISIONS

The Bank's other provisions are made of provision for staff remuneration

2024 2020

usD UsD

Provision for staff reuneration 2239147 2082730
2239147 2002730

NOTE 13 - SUBSCRIBED CAPITAL

As of December 31, 2021, the Bank's subseribed and fully paid up capital ameunts to USD 187,117 085 for
5.002 575 shares of Class A and 49,080 shares of Class B.

2241296
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MITSUBISHI UF) INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5 A
HOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2021
- contmued -

HOTE 14 - MOVEMEMTS IN RESERVES AND RESULT BROUGHT FORWARD

Legal Other Result brought
MESErve MEsErves forward
usoD usD usD
Balance at January 1, 2021 9857 898 237.787.876 70174
Profit for the year ended December 31, 2020 0 [1] 38,402 544
Appropration of profit
- Dividends paid to shareholders 1] o (27.212)
- Transfer to reserves for Net Worth Tax 2021 [1] 11.874.000 (11.874.000)
- Transfer from Reserve for Net Warth Tax
2ns5 0 (3348 4400 3,348 440
- Allocation to Free resemve 1] 28.860.000 (28.880.000)
= Allocation to Legal reserve 1.670.128 0 {1.970,128)
Balance at December 31, 2021 11.558.026 275193 436 G015

Under Luxembaurg law, the Bank must approgriate to a legal resene an amount equivalent 1o at least 5% of the
annual net profit until such reserve is equal to 10% of the share capital This appropriation is made in the
folleweng year, Distribution of the legal resenve is restricted

Based on the Luxembourg tax law, the Bank has elected to get a tax credit for all or part of the net worth tax due
for that year. This tax credit is however, limited to the amount of the corporate income tax due for the previous
year before the imputabion of any tax credits. In arder to profit from this credit, the Bank must commit itself to
post before the end of the subsequent year an amount equal to five times the net worth tax credit to a special
resarve, which has to be maintained for a penod of five years.

As of December 31, 2021, the special resarve for net worth tax is included in the Bank's other reserve for a total
amount of LISDr 45742 351 (20200 USD 37.216.781),

As reschved in the Annual General Meeting dated March 18, 2021, the Bank has allocated an amount of
USD 11.874.000 to special reserve for Net Warth Tax 2021 and reversed the available special reserve for Met

Worth Tax constituted in 2015 which amounted to LISD 3348 440,

The accumulated balance of special resarve for Met Worth Taxes states as follows as at December 31, 2021.
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5.4

HOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2021
- contmued -
2021
Reserve for Net
Worth Tax
Years uso
am7 4.276.351
218 B.700.000
219 9,981,000
2020 10.911.000
2021 11.874.000
Balance at December 31, 2021 45,742 351

NOTE 15 - RELATED PARTY BALANCES

As at December 31, 2021, the following balances with related parties are cutstanding:

ASSETS

2021 2020

UsD UsD

Loans and advances to credit institutions. 2.000.338 586 252320017
Prepayments and acorued income 16.028 654 18.411.677
2.016.3687. 250 2.541.620.624

LIABILITIES

2021 2020

usD uso

Amounts ewed to credit institutions 2952250135 1685102780
Amounts owed to customears BA0. 145 829 SB5 E35 450
Accruals and deferred income 2,626,650 20832654
3802025614 2.279,531.404

T
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MITSUBISHI UF) INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5 A
HOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2021
- contmued -

The above transactions with related parties were made at conditions comparable with non-related
counterparties.

At the request of the Bank, the C55F has granted a total exemption for the exposures towards the group
{Mitsubishi UFJ Financial Group) in the calculation of large exposure limits, in accordance with the Regulation
{EL) Mo STS/2013 of June 26, 2013 (Part IV).

As at December 31, 2021, the amaunt tewards the group falling under this exemplion amounts to
USD 2158384 437 and can be analysed as follows:

2021 2020

usD usD

Loans and advances to credit institutions 1,808, 585 580 2,522 808 891
Prepayments and accrued income 1.470.954 5044 240
Fomeign exchange transactons (Market Risk method) 134,630,654 57,144 242
1.944 687 198 2.585.807.673

HOTE 16 - FOREIGN CURRENCY LIABILITIES

At December 31, 2021, the aggregate amount of liabilities denominated in foreign currencies translated into
USD is USD B.054.585.535 (2020 5.995.7458.318).

HOTE 1T - CONTINGEMT LIABILITIES

The Bank's contingent liabilites may be analysed as follows:

2021 2020
uso usp
Counter-guarantess mswed 245003 280391

As at the year-end, there were no related party balances,

.3,
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MITSUBISHI UF) INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5 A
HOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2021
- contmued -

HOTE 18 - COMMITMENTS

The Bank has entered into certain commitments which are not disclosed neither in the Balance Sheet nor in the

Off Balance Sheet ltems, but which are significant for the purposes of assessing the financial situation of the

Bank. Details of such commitments are as follows:

2021 2020
usD usp

Commitments in respect of fixed rental payments contracted on
buildings 2786181 4. 2165945
I ———————— e ————— )

As at the year-end, there are no related party balances

NOTE 12 - OPERATIONS LINKED TO CURRENCY EXCHAMNGE RATES, INTEREST RATES AND OTHER MARKET
RATES

The following types of forward transactions are outstanding as at December 21, 2020 and 2015

lin [remn hange r

- Forward exchange transactions (swaps, outrights).

Operations linked to the foreign currency exchange rates are made to a large extent for the purposes of

cavering the exieting posibions

NOTE 20 - INVESTMENT MAMNAGEMENT SERVICES AND UNDERWRITING FUNCTIONS

Management and agency services provided by the Bank include:

- Custody and administration of transferable securities;
- Fiduciary representations;

- Agency functions;

- Partfolio management and advice.
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HOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2021
- contmued -
NOTE 21 - COMMISSIONS RECEIVABLE

2021 2020

UsD uso

Fees on Invesiment Funds 26.018.529 24626803
Fees on Global custody from Institutional customers 117947111 108. 765.953
Fees on Fiduciary transactions T7.630.429 9881.734
Fees on Services to Management Company 1.134.839 358.421
Cther fees and commissions 1.416.253 1.431.9M
154145250 145 574 B&2

Commissions recevable consist of the follovang:

Fees on Investment Funds consist of fees and commisssons charged to Investment Funds for custody services,
cenftral administration, depositary and other services, The fees are calculated on the basis of the value of net
assets of the funds under administration.

Fees on Global custody from Institutonal customers consst of fees and commassions charged to institutional
customers for global custody services including securities trade management, settlement, conporate actions,
income collection and proxy voting. The fees are calculated on the basis of the assets held under custody and
the number of transacticns.

Fees on Fiduciary transactions consist of fees and commissions eamed on fiduciary assets including custody
rransactions, cash management and fiduciary notes issuance. The fees are calculated on the basis of the
assets held under management and the number of transactions.

Fees on Services to Management Company include fees covening functional expenditures and fees for support

sefvices in accordance with the Service Level Agreament

Cther fees and commissions nclude varous fees such as isting agent fees, guarantee fees, banking services
fees and fund arder desk services feas.

Ey application of Article 63(2) of the law of June 17, 1992, on the annual accounts of credit institutions sources
of income have not been analysed by geographical region.
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HOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2021
- contmued -
NOTE 22 - OTHER OPERATING INCOME
2021 2020
UsD uso
Adjusiment of Income taxes 20153018 é] 88772
Adjustment for COMMISSION previous years 1.115.225 1168278
Income from the adjustment of general expenses
regarding previous years 534, 448 532488
Sub-Custodian refund (%) 3820715 0
Sub-Rental Fee received from the Management
Company (Service level agreement) 0 84538
Other operating income 3188 50078
5473576 1924254

{*) Sub-Custodian refund: Migration costs refund from Citibank relating to change of sub-custodian from Brown Bother
Harriman to Citibank. Refer to Mote 10.

NOTE 23 - OTHER OPERATING CHARGES

2021 2020
uso usp

Charges from the adjustment of general
expenses regarding previous years 178.276 §7.248
Commission on previous years 877.581 244112
Interest on previous years 42 585 2765
Others operating losses 316.251 65,8910
1,414,703 400.03%

— —
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MITSUBISHI UF) INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5 A
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2021
- contmued -

NOTE 24 - STAFF NUMBERS

The average number or persons employed duning the financial year by the Bank is as follows:

20 2020

Humber Mumber

Senior management 33 28
Middle managemeant 85 a5
Employess 52 56
170 N

NOTE 25 - MANAGEMENT REMUNERATION

The Bank has granted emoluments in respect of the inancial year to the members of the managernal body of the
Bank by reason of ther responsibilities as follows:

202 2020

UsD UsD

Senior management 5,306,782 4.877.002
OF which variable rémuneralion 754378 811.702

OFf which fix remuneration 4,552 405 4,065,300

During the financial year, no pension commitments to the members of the Board of Directors and General
Management were made.

As at December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Bank did not grant any advances and credits to the members of the
Board of Directors and General Management.
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NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2021
- contmued -

NOTE 26 - OTHER ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

.57

232/296

2021 2020
UsD usoD
Drata charges 1,364,350 1.273.871
Maintenance 1.135.2680 1.470.242
Membership fees 4913868 4291080
Professional fees 6,153 665 3782542
Rent and related expenses 1.739.510 1.2709.480
Sarvice contracts 7.989 450 B.402.084
Service fee 35000920 3165402
System cost 17.958. 719 11802849
Telecommunication expenses 581,452 563,427
Travellng, maoving, business trps 12.374 108.354
Cther expenses 105,285 491,452
45 424 934 34 631,783
NOTE 27 - TAX

T n fit on in it
2021 2020
usD UsD
Corporate Income Tax 3710052 9580154
Municipal Business Tax 1,379,381 3.473.085
5,089,413 13,053 249
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HOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
Decamber 31, 2021
- contmued -
272 her not sh 1 th i

2021 2020

usD UsD

VAT 1,766 322 1825735

COther taxes 72328 67873
1.838.6851 1883 708

NOTE 28 - PARENT UNDERTAKING

As of December 31, 2020, the Bank is a jointly capitalized subsidiary of Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking
Corporation by 100 %, which are under the holding company Mitsubishi UFJ) Financial Group (MUFG), which is
incorporated under the laws of Japan and whose registerad office is in Tokyo.

The annual accounts of the Bank are mcluded in the consolidated accounts of Mitsubishi UFJ Trust and Banking
Corporation, with Registered Financial Institution number 33 at Kanto Local Finance Bureau Japan and
registered address 4-5, Marunouchi 1-Chome, Chiyeda-Ku, Tokyo 100-8212, Japan.

The consaldated accounts of the halding company Mitsubishi LIFJ Financial Group (MUFG) may be cbtained
from the head office at 7-1, Mamunouchi 2-Chome, Chiyoda-Ku, Tokyo 100, Japan

NOTE 29 - DEPOSIT GUARANTEE SCHEME

The law rélated to the resalution, reorganisation and wanding-up measures of credit institutions and certain
investment firms and on deposit guarantee and investor compensation schemes (the “Law’), transposing into
Luxembourgish lawthe directve 200 4SWEL establishing a framework for the recovery and resolution of credit
institutions and investment firms and the directive 201 4/48EL related to deposit guarantee and investor
compensation schemes, was passed on December 18, 2015

233/296



EDINETOOOO
o o o o o o o o o =X =N )
Ooooooooooooooooooad

MITSUBISHI UF) INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5 A
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2021
- contmued -

The deposit guarantee scheme (Fonds de garantie des dépdts Lucembourg” (FGOL)) and the imvestor
compensation system ("Systéme d'indemnisaton des investisseurs Luxemibourg” (SIIL)) cover eligible
deposits of each depositor up to an amount of EUR 100.000 and investments up to an amount of EUR 20.000.
The Law also provides that deposits resulting from specific transactions or fulfilling a specific social or other
purpese are covered for an amaunt above EUR 100.000 for a period of 12 months.

Credit institutions contribute on an annual basis to the Luxembaurng banking resclution fund ("Fonds de
resalution Luxembourg™ (FRL)), respactively to the FGDL.

The funded amount of the FRL shall reach by the end of 2024 at least 1% of covered deposits, as defined in
article 107(1) of the Law, of all authorized credit institutions in all participating Member States, This amount will
be collected dunng the years 2015 to 2024,

The target level of funding of the FGDL s set at 0,8% of covered deposits, as defined in article 179(1) of the
Law, of the relevant credit institutions and 1% to be reached by the end of 2018 throwgh annual contributicns.
This amount will be collected during the years 2016 to 2018. When the level of 0,8% is reached, the
Luxembourgish credit institutions ane 1o continue to contribute for 8 addiional years in order to constitute an
additional safety buffer of 0.8% of covered deposits as defined in article 180(1) of the Law.

Faor the year end December 31, 2021, the Bank's annual contribution for FRL amounted to EUR 3.245.118

(S0 3.841.196). ( 2020 EUR 2.879.732 | USD 3.283.564).
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December 31, 2021
- contmued -

NOTE 30 - AUDIT FEES

Within the framework af the EU audit legislation and the mandatory audit firm ratation, the Bank has appointed

BOO Audit 5.4, starting from the fiscal year 2020

The fees of the Auditar af the Bank are a2 follows (excluding VAT):

2021 2020

usD uso

Audit fees 254,582 T
Audit related fees &7.930 56.245
Tax fees 33638 22.550
355351 336.020

The other audit related fees provided of the Auditor included the followng Service:

= ISAE 3402 Report for the period from January 1, 2021 to December 31, 2021,

The tax fees in relation to the financial year included the following services:

- Preparation of tax returns;
- Preparation of VAT retumns;

Additionally, registration fees for BDO Audit SA with the Japanese Authorites of USD 15107 have been re-
invoiced to the Bank

. 40.
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NOTE 31 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT DISCLOSURES

IR E

Primary non-trading financial instrurments

HOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2021- continued -

MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) S.A.

As at December 31, 2021, the analysis of primary non-trading financial instruments. (the Bank has no trading portfolio) by class and residual maturity is the following:

At carrying amount in USD
FINANCIAL ASSETS

Instrument ¢lass

Balances with the BCL (including BCL resene)
Leans and advances to credit instiutions
Loans and advances to customers
Shares and ather variable yield securities
Other Assets

Total Financial Assets

FINAMCIAL LIABILITIES

Instrument class

Amounts owed to credit institutions
Amounts owed to customers

Total Financial Liabilities

Oif-balance sheet lems disclased as conlingencias

Guarantees

Total Guarantees

< 3 months > 3 manths
<1 year

usD usD
7.093.833.508 0
2722588923 1.007 558347
36057 4]

1] 4]

a a
9.820.038.152 1.007.556.347
31151684, 719 4]
7.206.246 667 4]
10.321.411.386 [1]
545.003 ¢]
545.003 0

- 41.

236/296

=1 year
% 5 years
usD

|ﬂ| OO0 oo

= Sypars Total
usD UsD
o 7.093.833.508

i} 3730155270

u] 3605, TH
2818 28189
a 0
2815 10827 897318
] 3.115.164.719

Q 7206 246667

[1] 10,321 .411.386

0 545003

4] 545.003
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HOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2021- continued -

Az at December 31, 2020, the analysis of pnmary nan-trading financial instruments (the Bank has no trading portiolic) by class and residual maturity is the following:

< 3 months > 3 months > 1{ year > S years Total
£1 year £ 5 years
At carrying amount in USD usD usD UsD USD usD
FINAMCIAL ASSETS
Instrument class
Balances with the BCL (including BCL resene) 4 532 695 503 4] 0 1] 4 532 905 563
Loans and advances to credit institutions 2161814, 240 A75.558 551 4] o] 3.037 51283
Loans and advances to customers T.834.281 4] 1] o] 7834281
Shares and other variable yield securities 0 0 L] 3.033 3033
COther Assets 6.000.000 0 a o] 6.000.000
Tatal Financial Assels 5.708.844.114 BT5.598.591 0 3.033 7.584.445.738
FINAMCIAL LIABILITIES
Instrurment class
Arrounts owed to credit institubons 1.709.328.688 Q Q Q 1.709.328 688
Amounts cwed to customerns 5.363.495.359 o] Q 0 5.363.495.359
Total Financial Liabilities T.072.824.047 Q 0 '] 7.072.824.047
Oiff-balance sheet ilems disclosed as conlingencies
Guarantees 580301 4] a 4] S80.3581
Tatal Guarantees 580,391 0 [i] 0 580351
.42
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MITZUBISHI LUEJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5 A,
HOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 2021- continued -

2 i n-trading financial instr

As at Decernber 31, 2021, the analysis of OTC derivative non-trading financial instrurments (the Bank has no trading portfolico) by class and residual maturity is the following

2 3 months = 3 manths =1 year = 5 years Total Fair value
£1 year £ 5 years

At notional payable amount in USD usD usD usp uso uso usp
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Instrument class
Forgign exchange ransachons
Forwards 3881595 295 585 236 0 ] 3862 584 532 33,989 202
Swaps 1355808 582 4] o 0 1,365,808 582 28,425,708
Total 5.267,893.878 589.235 o 0 5.268.483.114 62.416.000
FINANGIAL LIABILITIES
Instrurment ¢lass
Fareign exchange transachons
Farwards 3.915453.725 591,608 o 1] 3916045333 33927979
Swaps 61168018 224 0 0 o 6 118,018,224 50321336
Total 10.033.471.545 551.608 0 o 10.034.063.557 B84.245.315

These amounts indude OTC derivative non-trading financial instruments with a trade date before December 31, 2021 and a value date after December 31, 2021.

. 43.
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December 31, 2021- continued -

Az at December 31, 2020, the analysis of OTC derivative non-frading financial instruments (the Bank has no trading portfolic) by class and residual maturity is the following

< 3 months > 3 months =1 year > § years Total Fair value
51 year 5 S years

At notienal payable amount in USD usD usD USD UsD UsD usD
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Instrument class
Foreign exchange ransachons
Forwards 4 826 443 880 5041174 ] 4] 4 831 484 834 18,024 454
Swaps 28728432385 Q ] Q 2872843236 11.023.212
Tatal 7.699.206.896 5.041.174 0 0 7.704.328.070 30.047.666
FINAMCIAL LIABILITIES
Instrument class
Farmign exchange fransaclons
Farwards 4,766,463 318 2073276 o Q 4,771.536.594 18.933.782
Swaps 2,044 859016 Q o 0 2,044 880.016 42172709
Total 6.811,362,334 5.073.27T6 T o 5,816.435.610 61,156,491

These amounts include OTC derrvative non-trading financaal instruments with a trade date before December 31, 2020 and a value date after December 31, 2020

- dd .
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) S A,
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
Decemnber 31, 201
- continued -

As at December 31, 2021 the Bank is exposed 1o the follcwang credit risk on primary non-trading financaal
instruments:

2021 2020
Carrying amount Carrying amaunt
inUsD in UsD
FINAMNCIAL ASSETS

By instrument class and geographic location
Cash, balances with the BCL T.083.833.508 4.532.995.593
Of which BCL mirimum reserve 97.631.550 74,074,339
EU member couniries 033833508 4 532095503
Loans and advances to credit institutions 3.730.155.27T0 303751280
EU member countries Q40 703432 583470279
Naorth & Cenlral America 520 542 452 J31.454.821
Asia 1.825.388.304 1.950.621.860
Eurgpe, non-EU member counltries 20.926.203 50.563.4945
Augtralia and New Zealand 104 504 879 15,402 426
Loans and advances to customers 3605721 T.534.281
EU mermber countries 01.423 7365951
Maorth & Ceniral America 1,357 565 38.644
Asra 2158733 530.488
Eurgpe, non-ELU member countries a 0
Shares and other variable yield securities 2818 3033
EU menber countries 2819 3033
Other Assets 227 &.000.000
EU member countries 2r 6.000.000
Total 10.827.587.545 7.584.445.738

- 45.
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MITSUBISHI UFJ) INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) S.A,

NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 201
- continuad -
Inf ian fitd I ing fi ial i n

As at December 31, 2021, the Bank & exposed to the follewing eredit risk on derivatives non-trading financial
instruments:

2021 2021
Motienal/payable Risk equivalent
amount amount
in USD inUsD
FINANCIAL ASSETS
By instrument class and geographic location
Foreign exchange transactions
Forwards
EU mamber couniries 280,117 358 1.814.411
Amevica 2.575. 793 556 24.076.449
Asgia 305 811,805 2490877
Europe, non-EU mamber counines G30.867.725 5.607 555
Swaps
EU mamber couniries 1.385.898 582 2B.426 708
Total 5.268.483.114 52.416,000
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MITSUBISHI UFJ INVESTOR SERVICES & BANKING (LUXEMBOURG) 5 A,
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
December 31, 201
- continued -

As at December 31, 2020, the Bank is expesed to the follkewing credit risk on dervatives non-trading financial
instruments:

2020 2020
Mationallpayable Risk aquivalent
amount amount
in USD in USD
FINAMCIAL ASSETS
By instrument class and geographic location
Foreign exchange transactions
Forwards
EL mamber couniries 1.573.370.543 9120220
Amevica 2763 233362 7104, 859
Asia S04 8RO, SO0 2799375
Swaps
EU member counires 2872843236 10232
Total 7.704.328.070 30.047 665

MOTE 32- SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Omne note requiring the attention in early 2022, Russia launched a full-scale invasion of Ukraine on 24 February 2022, which
is ongoing. Consequently each regulator starts to impose sanchons on Russia to change its behaviour. The Bank identified
the impact within the Bank and takes proper actions especially for sanction screening and cyber security to prevent the Bank
from being imposed the nisk of regulatory breach and cyber-attack. The suation is moving every day and the Bank is

manitaring the evolution on an ongaing basis

L47.
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UFJ S.A.
2022 30
010 7,307,751,556.09 953,442,346
020
030 5,003,476,980.83 652,803,642
040 2,304,274,575.26 300,638,704
050 107,099,072.14 13,973,216
060 107,099,072.14 13,973,216
070
080
090
096
097
098
099
100
120
130
141 2,591.61 338
142 2,591.61 338
143
144
181 2,040,386,764.92 266,209,261
182
183 2,040,386,764.92 266,209,261
240
250
260
270 2,494,125.49 325,409
280 2,494,125.49 325,409
290
300 2,577,775.88 336,322
310
320 2,577,775.88 336,322
330 13,799,588.21 1,800,432
340 13,799,588.21 1,800,432
350
360 41,012,071.07 5,350,845
370
380 9,515,123,545.39 1,241,438,169
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UFJ S.A.

2022 30

010 58,421,702.88 7,622,280

020 58,421,702.88 7,622,280

030

040

050

060

070

080

090

100

110 8,885,414,337.89 1,159,280,009

120 8,883,247,381.29 1,158,997,286

130

140 2,166,956.60 282,723

150

160

170

180

190

200

210

220

230

240 15,689,662.84 2,047,030

250 14,990,027.56 1,955,749

260 699,635.28 91,281

270

280 36,068,672.82 4,705,880

290

300 8,995,594,376.44 1,173,655,198
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UFJ S.A.

2022 30

010 187,117,965.90 24,413,281

020 187,117,965.90 24,413,281

030

040

050

060

070
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Independent auditor®s report

To Brown Brothers Harriman Trust Company (Cayman) Limited, solely in its capacity as
trustee of GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund, a sub-trust of MUGC GS Cayman Fund

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of GS Australia Hybrid Securities Fund (the““Sub-Trust””), a sub-trust
of MUGC GS Cayman Fund, as at 30 September 2022, and its financial performance and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards.

What we have audited
The Sub-Trust"s financial statements comprise:

e the statements of financial position as at 30 September 2022;

e the schedule of investments as at 30 September 2022;

e the statements of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

e the statements of changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating units for the year then ended;

e the statements of cash flows for the year then ended; and

e the notes to the financial statements, which include significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor"s
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Sub-Trust in accordance with the International Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (including International Independence Standards) issued by
the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA Code). We have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Sub-
Trust™s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Sub-Trust or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Auditor®s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor®s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Sub-Trust®s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management®s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Sub-
Trust"s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor®s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor®s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Sub-Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.
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e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Other matter

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the Sub-Trust in
accordance with the terms of our engagement letter and for no other purpose. We do not, in
giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other
person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly
agreed by our prior consent in writing.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Cayman Islands

22nd December 2022
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REPORT OF THE REVISEUR D"ENTREPRISES AGREE

To the Board of Directors of

Mitsubishi UFJ Investor Services & Banking (Luxembourg) S.A.
287-289, Route d"Arlon

L-1150 Luxembourg

Report on the audit of the annual accounts
Opinion

We have audited the annual accounts of Mitsubishi UFJ Investor Services & Banking (Luxembourg)
S_A. (the ““Bank””), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 December 2021, and the profit and
loss account for the year then ended, and notes to the annual accounts, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying annual accounts give a true and fair view of the financial
position of the Bank as at 31 December 2021, and of the results of its operations for the year
then ended in accordance with Luxembourg legal and regulatory requirements relating to the
preparation and presentation of the annual accounts.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the EU Regulation N° 537/2014, the Law of 23 July 2016
on the audit profession (““Law of 23 July 2016~~) and with International Standards on Auditing
(““I1SAs””) as adopted for Luxembourg by the ““Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier””
(““CSSF>?). Our responsibilities under the EU Regulation No 537/2014 , the law of 23 July 2016
and ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF are further described in the « Responsibilities of
the ““réviseur d"entreprises agréé”” for the audit of the annual accounts» section of our report.
We are also independent of the Bank in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants, including International Independence Standards, issued by the
International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA Code) as adopted for Luxembourg by
the CSSF together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the annual
accounts, and have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities under those ethical requirements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the annual accounts of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of the audit of the annual accounts as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Revenue recognition - Commission receivable

Why the matter was considered to be
one of most significant in the audit.

How the matter was addressed in the audit.

We refer to Summary of significant
accounting policies - Note 2.15 -
Revenue Recognition and Note 21 on
Commission Receivable of the annual
accounts.

Commission receivable amounted to USD
154,145,260 as of 31 December 2021.
Commissions receivable mainly derive
from investment funds, fiduciary and
global custody operations.

The applicable rates per each type of
commission depend on the underlying
assets under custody and
administration, agreements and
services provided.

The recognition process of commission
receivable includes manual
intervention and it is considered to
be a key audit matter due to the
materiality of the related amounts,
combined with the volume of
transactions that are recorded.

Our audit focused on the following
procedures:

We held interviews with Finance and Billing
department and obtained an understanding of
the commission receivable recognition
process.

We assessed the design and implementation of
the internal controls surrounding commission
receivable, and tested operating
effectiveness of the relevant related key
controls.

We developed expectations for the aggregate
amounts per type of commission income and we
compared the expectations to the amounts
recorded by the Bank.

For a sample of the different types of
commissions:

we tested commission receivable by
performing independent recalculation of
the commissions for a sample of items.
This also included the reconciliation of
the fee terms to the underlying contracts
and the underlying basis to external
evidence;
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we agreed the receipt of accrued
commissions to payments subsequent year
end;

we included elements of
““unpredictability”” in the procedures
performed in response to the risk of
fraud by randomly selecting additional
items and by ensuring segregation of
duties, as well as the application of the
““4 eyes principle®”, within the fee and
commission income process.

Other information

The Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information stated in the management report but does not include the annual accounts and our
report of the ““réviseur d"entreprises agréé”” thereon.

Our opinion on the annual accounts does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the annual accounts, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the annual accounts or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report this fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors for the annual accounts

The Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these annual
accounts in accordance with Luxembourg legal and regulatory requirements relating to the
preparation and presentation of the annual accounts, and for such internal control as the Board
of Directors determines is necessary to enable the preparation of annual accounts that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the annual accounts, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing Bank®s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Bank or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
S0.

Responsibilities of the ““réviseur d"entreprises agréé”” for the audit of the annual accounts

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the annual accounts as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue a report of the
““réviseur d"entreprises agréé”” that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the EU Regulation
N° 537/2014, the Law dated 23 July 2016 and with ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these annual
accounts.
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As part of an audit in accordance with the EU Regulation N° 537/2014, the Law dated 23 July 2016
and with ISAs as adopted for Luxembourg by the CSSF, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the annual accounts, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank"s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors® use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank"s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our report of the ““réviseur d"entreprises agréé”” to
the related disclosures in the annual accounts or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our report of the ““réviseur d"entreprises agréé””. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the annual accounts, including
the disclosures, and whether the annual accounts represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate to them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the annual accounts of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our audit report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

We have been appointed as ““réviseur d"entreprises agréé”” by the Board of Directors on 18 March
2021 and the duration of our uninterrupted engagement, including previous renewals and
reappointments, is 2 years.

The management report is consistent with the annual accounts and has been prepared in accordance
with applicable legal requirements.

We confirm that the prohibited non-audit services referred to in the EU Regulation N° 537/2014
were not provided and that we remained independent of the Bank in conducting the audit.
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Luxembourg, 22 March 2022

BDO Audit
Cabinet de révision agréé
represented by
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